White Collar Crime - Casino Spring 2004

Text:  Bucy White Collar Crime (1998) and 2000 Supp.
2Elements Checklist


2Jurisprudence of White Collar Crime


2Prosecutorial Discretion


3Mail and Wire Fraud


9Conspiracy


12RICO


16Public Corruption


16Bribery


16Gratuities


18Hobbs Act – 18 U.S.C. 1951


19Obstruction of Justice


20Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002


21Perjury


22Common Defenses to Perjury


23Corporate Criminal Liability


24Corporate Officer Criminal Liability


25Investigations


25Grand Jury


27Grand Jury Secrecy


27Fifth Amendment Issues


27Immunity


28Privileges


29Fourth Amendment Issues


30Environmental Crimes


31Clean Water Act: 33 U.S.C. 1251-1376


31Clean Air Act: 42 U.S.C. 7413


31RCRA: 42 U.S.C. 6901-6987


31CERCLA: 42 U.S.C. 9601-9675


31Fraud on Financial Institutions


32Health Care Fraud


32False Statements


34False Claims


34Qui Tam Suits


35Money Laundering


37Currency Transaction Reports (CTRs)


37Tax Fraud


38Computer Crime


38Sentencing


38Asset Forfeiture


39Securities Fraud




Elements Checklist
Jurisprudence of White Collar Crime

White Collar  Crime: Definition

· Sutherland:  “wrongdoing committed by a person of respectability and high social status in the course of his occupation.”

· DOJ:  “non-violent illegal activities which principally use deceit, deception, concealment, fraud, or misrepresentation to obtain money, property, or some other advantage.”

“White Collar”


· Non-violent

· Deception/deceit involved

· Committed for monetary gain

· Planning/deliberation

· Usually not professional criminals

· Abuse of power/trust may be present

“Crime”

· Brought by the government, in the name of the people

· Possible penalties include prison

· Higher burden of proof

· More culpable mental state

· Moral stigma of conviction

Characteristics of White Collar Crime Cases

· Complexity, scope, and magnitude of case

· Nature of the investigation – grand jury

· Role of defense counsel

· Organizational presence

· Parallel proceedings

· Multiple actors

· Centrality of mens rea

· Breadth of statutes and prosecutorial discretion

NEW YORK CENTRAL AND HUDSON RIVER RAILROAD COMPANY v. UNITED STATES: Appellant corporation and its assistant traffic manager were convicted for the payment of rebates upon shipments from the city of New York to the city of Detroit. The court affirmed appellant's conviction finding that the act of the agent, while exercising authority delegated to him to make rates for transportation, could be controlled, in the interest of public policy, by imputing his act to appellant and imposing penalties upon appellant. The court held that rebating under the federal statutes was a crime which could be committed by a corporation. The court found there was no good reason why corporations could not be held responsible for and charged with the knowledge and purposes of their agents, acting within the authority conferred upon them. The court held that, should appellant not be found criminally liable merely because it was a corporation, many such type of offenses would go unpunished. The court found that the statutes against rebates could not be effectually enforced so long as only individuals were subject to punishment for violations of the law when the giving of rebates inured to the benefit of corporations of which the individuals were but the instruments.

Prosecutorial Discretion

DOJ Manual

· should charge crime if conduct is a federal offense and readily available evidence is enough to obtain and sustain conviction

· Don’t charge if:

· No big federal interest

· Another jurisdiction can handle

· Another non-criminal remedy available

Questions for Prosecutor

· Who do you charge?

· Who do you offer pleas to?

· Who do you immunize?

· Who gets a pass?

· Who’s the big fish?

What to Charge?

· guidelines have taken a lot of discretion away

· prosecutors can’t have as much effect on the sentence

DOJ Guidance about charging decisions varies w/ Administration

· Thornburg Memo/Reno loosens/Ashcroft tightens back up

· But doesn’t really make much difference in the end

Plea Bargaining

· vast majority of cases end in guilty pleas

· some sort of deal almost always made

· drop some charges

· recommend certain guidelines provisions to the judge

· cooperation agreement

· want to get the §5K1.1 Substantial Assistance departure

Concerns about a plea bargain?

· perjury committed by someone trying to get §5K departure

· Singleton issues (immunity = thing of value in gratuity case)

· Best Solution?  -- DISCLOSURE

· Everyone will know the agmt exists; witness will be vigorously cross-examined by defense atty

· Eliason: juries aren’t naïve bumpkins who believe whatever the witness says

Plea Proceedings

· governed by Fed R. Crim. P. R. 11

· ct asks pleader lots of questions to make sure they understand what they are doing

· prosecutor has to resent proffer to the court that states the factual basis for the pleader’s guilty plea

What are the controls on prosecutorial discretion?

· mostly only internal

· manual, chains of review

· for big cases, usually go to indictment review cmtes (really big cases, reviewed at main justice)

· “common law”, institutional memory w/in office; maintain consistency w/in the office over time

· some external controls: McDade amendment (prosecutors subject to local ethical rules); not as big a change as some said, b/c prosecutors were always subject to local ethics rules – big change in contacts w/ witnesses under certain circumstances

· Hyde amendment: parties who prevail in crim cases against US can recover their atty fees (but the std is very high – frivolous, vexatious, bad faith prosecution)

· Judicial sanctions

· Public opinion – its your jury pool; if prosecutor has rep for being unfair/persecutory ( jury may not look kindly on you;

· Reputation w/ defense bar, won’t want to deal w/ you;

Mail and Wire Fraud

18 USC § 1341 – Mail Fraud 

18 USC § 1343 – Wire Fraud

18 USC § 1349 - Attempt/Conspiracy

18 USC § 1346 – definition of “scheme or artifice to defraud”

1. Mail Fraud

18 USC § 1341 – having devised or intending to devise any scheme or artifice to defraud, or for obtaining money or prop by means of false or fraudulent pretenses, representations, or promises… for the purpose of executing such scheme or artifice or attempting to do so… [covers sending/receiving by USPS or any private carrier].
· mail fraud statute, passed 1872, succeeded by wire fraud statute. Favorite tool of federal prosecutors – reliable, simple, familiar, broad enough to cover wide variety of crimes – bribery, insurance, stocks, counterfeit, etc.

Basic elements

1. scheme/artifice to defraud - doesn't require actual consummation

2. by means of false/fraudulent pretenses, promises, representations etc. Neder – must be MATERIAL misrep.

3. for the purpose of executing the scheme, or attempting to do so, the D puts the stuff in the mail. Can include US mail or interstate carrier – e.g. UPS

2. Wire Fraud
“transmits or causes to be transmitted by means of any wire, radio, or TV communication interstate or foreign commerce, any writings, signs, signals, pictures, or sounds for the purpose of executing such scheme or artifice…”

- Covers Internet, e-mail, TV, lots of stuff.

Elements of the Offense

(1) defendant engaged in a “scheme to defraud”

(2) defendant made material misstatements or omissions

(3) defendant acted w/ specific intent or purpose to defraud

(4) defendant used or caused use of (a) US mail, (b) private courier service, (c) interstate or international wires

(5) use of the mails, courier, or wires was in furtherance of the scheme to defraud

(6) scheme resulted, or would result upon completion, in the loss of money or property, or in the deprivation of honest services

“Scheme or Artifice to Defraud”

· Not defined in the statutes

· In general, plan/strategy to obtain something of value from another through the use of deceit, trickery, or other dishonest methods 

Intent to defraud

· Durland: includes everything designed to defraud by representations as to the past/present, or suggestions/promises as to the future

· US v. Regent Office Supply: [501] soliciting sales w/ false respn’s not directed to the quality/adequacy/price of goods or otherwise to the nature of the bargain = scheme to defraud

· Intent to deceive <> intent to defraud

· Must have intent to harm victim & intent to gain

Defendants were indicted and tried under a procedure whereby defendants agreed to be indicted and expeditiously tried upon certain admissions and stipulations of fact constituting the alleged crime. The government's case consisted entirely of defendants' stipulation. On the stipulation, the government rested its case. A decision on a motion for acquittal was reserved. Defendants sought to challenge the jurisdiction of the court by a post-verdict, pre-sentence motion to dismiss the indictment. On appeal, the court held that the convictions should be reversed. The court found that defendants' conduct described in the admissions and stipulations of fact did not come within the prohibition of the mail fraud statute, 18 U.S.C.S. § 1341. Further, the court found that because the skeletal facts presented by the stipulation did not evidence a fraudulent scheme within the meaning of § 1341, the convictions were reversed.

Fraudulent representation to get by secretaries (white lies) to get through to purchasing agents 

· Court rules that there was no fraud in this case. 

· Intent to injure is critical

· Attempt to deceive is different from the intent to defraud

· Lustiger v. US: [SUP 40] stmts may not have been literally false, but taken as a whole misleading/desceptive; if a scheme is devised w/ intent to defraud, and the mails are used to execute the scheme, the fact that there is no misrepresentation of a single existing fact is immaterial

· Must have specific intent to defraud: if defendant acted in good faith (good will & w/out intent to harm) = complete defense

· Don’t have to show actual injury – attempts are covered

Materiality --rarely an issue; whether a reasonable person would think the rep’n was important enough
· Neder v. US [497]: confirmed that the deception must be material.  Petitioner's convictions under various federal statutes prohibiting fraud, including mail fraud, 18 U.S.C.S. § 1341, wire fraud, 18 U.S.C.S. § 1343, and bank fraud, 18 U.S.C.S. § 1344 statutes, were affirmed, and petitioner's application for writ of certiorari was granted. The court held the failure to instruct the jury as to materiality, an element of tax fraud under 26 U.S.C.S. § 7206(1), was subject to harmless-error analysis because the error did not render the trial fundamentally unfair. The court found the error was harmless because the error did not, beyond a reasonable doubt, contribute to the verdict, petitioner did not contest materiality, which was supported by overwhelming evidence, and the jury verdict would have been the same even if instruction was proper. Materiality was an element of mail, wire, and bank fraud because the terms in the statute were given their established common law meaning, which included materiality. The judgment was reversed and remanded only for consideration of whether the failure to instruct the jury on materiality with respect to mail, wire, and bank fraud was harmless error. The judgment affirming the tax fraud conviction was affirmed.

· Implied Element of Materiality – Materiality is an element of the mail/wire fraud statutes – Neder v. US (US 1999) – held, when Cong enacted the mail fraud statute, C/L fraud required a misrepresentation or concealment of material fact. (supp P 1)

What constitutes using interstate wires?
· Same as mail fraud standard – does not require actual knowledge of use, but just knowledge that the use of the wires will follow in the ordinary course or business, or can be reasonably foreseen.

What Constitutes “Mailing?”
· D does not have to literally put the thing in the mail; and “not necessary that the scheme contemplate the use of the mails as an essential element.” Where one does an act w/knowledge that the use of the mails will follow in the ordinary course of business, or where such use can be reasonably foreseen, although not actually intended, then “mailing” is established.

· Pareira v. US (US 1954) – D was gigolo who married wealthy woman, then convinced her to advance $35,000 toward an oil venture; he knew/should have known that she would receive the check from her bank through the mail. This was sufficient to constitute “causing to be mailed.”

· US v. Hannigan (3d Cir 1994) – D conspired to defraud insurance company - govt failed on appeal b/c it failed to produce evidence at trial that D knew that the “ordinary course of business” was to send checks through mail.

What is “for the purpose of executing such scheme or artifice?”

· A conspiracy or plan to engage in fraudulent mailing activities AFTER Ds have received money from victims MAY constitute “for the purpose of executing” the scheme, if jury is reasonable in finding that.

· US v. Samson (US 1962 – BLACK)  ailing that occurs AFTER the fraud was completed may be found to trigger liability.

· Schmuck v. US (US 1989 – BLACKMUN)

Facts: D bought used cars, rolled back odometers, resold to dealers at higher prices for “lower” mileage. After he sold each car, dealer who bought it would send a title-application form through mail to WISDOT on behalf of his retail customer.

Issue: Can “mailing… for the purpose of executing” be found where the mailing itself is innocent and occurs AFTER the fraud has been completed, and is only tangentially related?

Held: YES. The court affirmed a judgment, which held that the proper test for determining whether a defendant was entitled to an instruction on a lesser-included offense under Fed. R. Crim. P. 31(c) was the elements test and that the offense of odometer tampering was not a lesser-included offense of mail fraud. First, the court clarified the scope of the offense of mail fraud, explaining that the use of the mail need not be an essential element of the scheme, but that it was sufficient that the mailing be incidental to an essential part of the scheme. Applying that scope to the offense charged, the court held that petitioner was guilty of mail fraud when the use of the mails to transfer title of used cars was essential to maintaining his good relationship with the used car dealers he was defrauding. Next, the court held that the language and history of Rule 31(c) as well as the goals of judicial certainty and predictability all supported the application of the elements test, rather than the inherent relationship test. Applying the elements test to the offenses charged, the court found that the element of the offense of odometer tampering was not a subset of any element of mail fraud.

Can Breach of Fiduciary Duty be a “Scheme or artifice to defraud?”

TODAY: YES.

· Govt officials who defrauded citizens – until 1987, Cts held that they were liable b/c they were falsely representing that they gave honest/faithful services to public.

· Private sector employees – until 1987, Cts affirmed mail fraud convictions for defrauding their employers by taking kickbacks or selling confidential info, on the same theory as for public officials.

· US v. George (7th Cir 1973) – endorsed the “breach of fiduciary duty” theory for private sector. P 75

· McNally v. US (US 1987) Held, mail fraud did not cover breaches of fiduciary duty b/c the statute did not cover losses of “intangible rights” such as the right honest and faithful services.  After McNally, Cong amended 18 USC to clarify (18 USC § 1346) that “scheme or artifice to defraud” includes a scheme or artifice to deprive another of the intangible right of honest services.
Intent
Mail fraud generally requires intent to deceive plus some intent to harm. (Since US v. Regent Office Supply, 2nd Cir 1970).

Possible theories of liability:
· Right to control theory – D (contractor or hired agent) deprives corporation of their right to control his activities – e.g. D’Amato where D charged with concealing from Unisys the real nature of what his services were (lobbying rather than writing reports).

· False pretenses theory – D agrees to do something that he really does not intend to do – e.g. D’Amato – D charged with agreeing to write reports that he did not intend to write. 

Reliance

· Standard for reliance:
Some Circuits – D’s misrepresentation must be such that a reasonable person would rely on it.

US v. Brown – Ds worked for development company that built homes in Fla and urged northern people to buy homes in their developments; held, not guilty of mail fraud b/c a person of reasonable care would not rely on the representations of the salespeople alone in deciding whether to buy. Rule: the deception must be “reasonably calculated to deceive persons of ordinary prudence and comprehension”.

Some Circuits – D’s misrepresentation must be such that some person would rely on it – i.e. it’s enough to show that even a very gullible/foolish person would rely on it. Congress did not distinguish between schemes designed to catch a prudent investor and those designed to catch less competent people.

US v. Brien
Middle ground in other circuits –

- US v. Coffman (7th Cir 1996 – Posner) – gullability of the victim is one factor to consider in weighing the guilt of the D.

Victim Reliance

· Circuit Conflict (Brown  - 11th, Coffman – 7th)

· US v. Brown: [509] (FL house sales) issue is whether a reasonable person would have relied on the misrep’ns  Decision concerned w/ overcriminalization & intrusion into ordinary business dealings

· US v. Coffman [514] (phony docs to get loan) mail fraud still exists even if the person is unusually gullible; reasonable reliance rqmt exists to help draw line b/w puffery & fraud;  Gullibility may help prove defendant’s intent; greater the gullibility, more likely that the defendant made a highly implausible deceptive stmt w/ intent to defraud

The defendant need not make the mailing or transmission personally 

· “Where one does an act with knowledge that use of the mails will follow in the ordinary course of business, or where such use can reasonably be foreseen, even though not actually intended, then he ‘causes’ the mails to be used.”  Pereira v. United States, 347 U.S. 1 (1954)

· Note: court will be skeptical if tenuous relationship b/w fraud and the use of the mail

In Furtherance Of 

The mailing/transmission itself need not be fraudulent or false, and can be routine or innocent

US v. Schmuck [485] (titles in mail (after sale of car) w/ false odometer numbers were in furtherance of fraud)

· The mailing/transmission need not be an essential part of the scheme, but must be related to or incident to an essential part of the scheme

· Scalia dissent: it’s mail fraud, not mail & fraud; 

· Very difficult call, but most mailing necessary to continue the ongoing scheme will probably be sufficient

Convergence Requirement

· Party deceived must also be the intended victim of the scheme [see McNally, HB 74]

· Intent of mail/wire fraud statutes to protect people from schemes to deprive them of their money

Nature of Schemes to Defraud

1)  Misrepresentations, false statements, or other active deceit

2)  Failure to disclose material information/breach of fiduciary duty

Scheme to defraud requires injury or attempted injury

Lustiger v. United States: Appellant was convicted of 17 counts of mail fraud under 18 U.S.C.S. § 1341 based on a real estate scheme that defrauded or obtained money by use of the mail. The court affirmed, finding that the evidence was overwhelming that appellant's advertising materials were in some respects false and, apart from falsity were, when considered as a whole, fraudulently deceptive and misleading, exhibiting an intent and purpose to defraud. The court found that appellant failed to request under Fed. R. Crim. P. 23(c) that the district court make special findings of facts, and thus he could not obtain reversal on the ground that some of the representations or concealment of material fact relied upon by appellee United States were not proved to be false, misleading, or deceptive. The court found that appellant's refund and exchange policies did not necessarily negate a finding of bad faith. The court found that U.S. Const. amend. IV did not preclude postal inspectors from copying information from the outside of sealed envelopes in the mail, where no substantial delay in the delivery was involved, and that a "mail watch," involving no substantial delay, did not violate 18 U.S.C.S. § 170.
Lustiger case (Supplement p. 40-44)

· Real estate sales in Arizona

· False statements about the development

· Court rules that this is a scheme to defraud – even though text was literally true

· Defense contented that this was mere puffery – court ruled that this crossed the line.

· Is this a good use of the criminal law?

United States v. Brown: Defendants, officers in the largest development company in Florida, were convicted of defrauding and conspiring to defraud homebuyers. Defendants sold their homes at significantly higher prices than independently built homes in the same neighborhoods. Defendants targeted customers in "snowbelt" states, who were encouraged to visit defendants' communities at defendants' expense. The court reversed. The court held that defendants' guilt was not proved. The court held that the government had presented insufficient evidence that defendants had devised a scheme reasonably calculated to deceive persons of ordinary prudence and comprehension because the buyers could have acquired information about comparable house prices. The court held that the mail fraud statute did not authorize vicarious criminal liability and that participation by a business entity in a scheme to defraud in no way necessitated a finding that officers were participants in that scheme. The court held that the evidence had to show that each officer, the person, "willfully participated" in the scheme. There was no evidence that defendants encouraged their employees to lie or that they personally lied to customers. -

· Another real estate case – houses puffed as more than they were worth

· Intent to injure, materiality, BUT no reasonable person would have relied on the misrepresentation.

· Underlying product is fine – just not worth as much as defendants imagined

United States v. Coffman: Defendants attempted to perpetrate a scheme whereby they offered worthless stock to a brokerage house as collateral for a loan. The broker notified the authorities about the scheme and defendants were convicted of wire fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C.S. § 1343. Defendants appealed from their conviction. Defendants argued that the brokerage house was a sophisticated business and would have never been deceived by their scheme. The court held that § 1343 punished the scheme rather than the completed fraud. The court noted that even though defendants' attempt was thwarted, their attempt was culpable even though it was certain that it would not have succeeded. The court held that the judge's failure to assemble defendants and their counsel before responding to a jury question was error, but given the circumstances, it did not likely change the outcome and therefore it was harmless error. The court also held that the district judge's error in using one defendant's prior offense to calculate the intended loss for sentencing purposes was harmless because that amount was within the same zone of sentencing guidelines as the amount from this crime. The court affirmed the judgments.

· Can’t take reasonable person standard to the extreme – otherwise you can prey on the feeble minded with impunity.

Object of Schemes to Defraud

1)  To obtain money or property (including intangible property – confidential business information/right to ctrl assets)

2)  To deprive victim of a right to “fair and honest services”  (18 U.S.C. 1346)

McNally v. United States: United States brought charges against petitioners for devising a scheme to defraud the citizens and government of Kentucky of their right to have the Commonwealth's affairs conducted honestly. Petitioners alleged that the mail fraud statute, 18 U.S.C.S. § 1341 was not applicable. The court held that the mail fraud statute was to protect property rights. As there are no constructive offenses and the statute was limited to property rights, petitioners' actions were beyond the scope of the statute. The mail fraud statute was not applicable to the intangible right of the citizenry to good government. The court reversed the convictions against petitioners and remanded for further consistent proceedings.

· Public corruption in state insurance purchasing

· Self dealing scheme – but not costing the citizens any money 

· Charge based on failing to disclose conflict of interest

· Court says that mail and wire fraud protects property rights

· Slippery slope (turning every ethical violation to be a mail or wire fraud case)

Congress overturns McNally (18 U.S.C. 1346)

Carpenter v. United States: Petitioner reporter entered into a conspiracy with petitioner brokers in which petitioner reporter agreed to give information regarding certain stocks to petitioner brokers before the information was printed in an article that would be submitted to a national newspaper. Petitioner reporter was convicted of mail and wire fraud, 18 U.S.C.S. § 1341, when he fraudulently misappropriated his employer's property and used the mail and wire services to commit these acts. The appellate court affirmed, and petitioners applied for a writ of certiorari. The Court found that the information was considered to be the employer's property because it was confidential business information. Petitioner reporter owed his employer the fiduciary obligation to protect the confidential information obtained during the course of his employment. Because the reporter committed fraudulent actions in misappropriating his employer's property and used the mail and wire services to perpetrate the crime, the Court affirmed the decision.

· Wall Street Journal case (“Heard on the Street”)

· Insider trading and mail fraud (mailing of WSJ to clients)

· Defendants argue that there is no property interest in WSJ

· Court disagreed – mailing was critical

· How is this distinguishable from McNally

· Intellectual property – confidential business right

· Would it be different if this was a “fantasy stock league”

· What if there is no statement of confidentiality

United States v. Czubinski: Defendant worked at the Internal Revenue Service(IRS), and he was entitled to access computer tax returns for purposes of answering questions of a taxpayer. However, defendant consistently browsed computer files of taxpayers without permission, and he was convicted of various counts of wire fraud, 18 U.S.C.S. §1343, and computer fraud under 18 U.S.C.S. § 1030 et seq. He claimed that the district court erred when it denied his motion for judgment of acquittal because the evidence was insufficient to support the guilty verdicts. The court agreed and reversed his convictions. The court held that the unauthorized browsing of taxpayer files, although inappropriate conduct, could not sustain a federal felony conviction. The court said that the unauthorized browsing, even if done with the intent to deceive the IRS into thinking he was performing only authorized searches, constituted a deprivation within the meaning of the federal fraud statutes. It concluded that searches of taxpayer return information could also not satisfy the statutory requirement that he obtain anything of value, or that he intended anything more than to satisfy idle curiosity.

· IRS employee looking at tax information of others

· Distinguished from Carpenter by the fact that there was no intent to benefit and no harm accrued to the IRS

Loss of intangible property rights

· US v. Carpenter [535] (WSJ info used to trade stocks): paper was deprived of right to keep its info confidential and to exclusive use b/f publication;

· Strongly criticized for extending state law fiduciary duty breaches to fed mail/wire fraud

· Essentially using internal workplace rules as std for federal criminal charges

License <> property b/c govt interest is regulatory (Cleveland v. US – [542])

Deprivation of “Honest Services”

US v. McNally [526] (KY ofc funnel st ins K’s to ins agencies they ctrl): S.Ct. throws out the “fair & honest services” doctrine; Congress overturned in 1988 w/ “McNally Fix”, 18 USC 1346

Current State of Fair/Honest Svcs Doctrine

· Great deal of confusion, no leg history on 1346

· 2nd cir has overturned on void for vagueness grounds (US v. Handakas)

· Doesn’t completely overturn McNally, at least prohibits deprivation of “intangible right of honest services” (Cleveland v. US)

· Some dispute about whether it applies to both public &/or private actors, majority of courts apply to both

Public Employees

US v. Czubinski [687] (IRS employee viewing tax files)

· 1st Cir rejected holding him liable b/c he didn’t intend to benefit from the material b/c he never disclosed it

concerned about turning mail fraud into draconian personnel regulation should only go to “serious corruption” – embezzlement, bribery, conflicts of interest – actions that run contrary to proper performance of public duties to deprive one of intangible property interest in confidential info: articulable harm to the holder of the information as a result of defendant’s activities, OR  gainful use must be intended by the person accessing the info (whether or not economically profitable)  FN7: showing of disclosure/intent to disclose enough for deprivation of property rights

Private Employees

US v. Frost [564] (fraudulent PhD’s)

· University has property right in unissued degrees

· An employee deprives his employer of honest services when the defendant might reasonably have contemplated some concrete business harm to his employer stemming from his failure to disclose the conflict along w/ any other info relevant to the transaction

· Prosecution must show that the defendant intended to breach his fiduciary duty and reasonably should have foreseen that the breach would create an identifiable econ risk to the victim

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

· New 18 U.S.C. 1349:  Attempts and conspiracies to commit mail and wire fraud now subject to the same punishment as mail and wire fraud

· Increased statutory maximum penalties for mail and wire fraud from 5 to 20 years

Conspiracy

Advantages of a Conspiracy Charge

  
1.  Straightforward and easy to understand. 


2.  Easy to lay out the entire criminal scheme.

3.  Evidence/Hearsay advantages – Fed. R. Evid. 801(d)(2)(E).

· co-conspirator stmts made during/in furtherance of conspiracy are not heresay

· expands scope of relevant evidence to all acts committed by co-conspirators

4.  Statute of limitations advantages.

· no SoL tolling until last overt act completed

· 5 yrs gen’ly applies

 
5.  Venue advantages.

· occurs not only where crime occurs, but in any other venue where overt act occurred

6.  Allows joinder of many defendants and charges in single indictment.

7.  Success or completion of the criminal scheme is not required (crime is the agreement)

8.  Vicarious Liability (Pinkerton): substantially increases scope of defendant liability to acts of co-conspirators

Conspiracy -- Elements

1  Two or more persons form an agreement
a. to commit an offense against the US; 
  



· satisfied by committing any federal offense

· doesn’t mean crime where US is the victim

· could include civil offenses

b. to defraud the US;

· of money/property

· impairing/obstructing/impeding lawful gov’t function by deceit, craft or trickery (no monetary loss necessary)

· action doesn’t have to be criminal offense

· agreement can be shown by circumstantial evidence

· one doesn’t have to understand entire conspiracy; must agree to same overall criminal purpose

· can charge both prongs in the same indictment

· usually should if possible (see Arch Trading)

· conspiracy can have multiple objects; can be alleged in same count;

2 Defendant knowingly and voluntarily joins the conspiracy with the intent to further the criminal objective;

3 At least one overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy is committed by one member of conspiracy.

· The overt act need not be illegal itself.

· The overt act need not have been committed by this particular defendant.

· All of the overt acts alleged in the indictment need not be proven – only need to prove one.

· Overt act must be in furtherance of the conspiracy and must take  place during the life of the conspiracy.

· Overt acts can be the key to venue and statute of limitations issues.

US v. Arch Trading Co. [807] (biotech equipment to Iraq in violation of executive order)

· indictment only chg’d conspiracy to commit offense, not conspiracy to defraud; arg’d that facts only supported defraud b/c exec order can’t specify an offense – CT DISAGREES;

· executive order don’t alone establish crimes, but when Congress specifies criminal sanction for their violation ( can be crime

· 2 prongs of §371 overlap considerably; government has considerable latitude in deciding how to charge; 

· can list both prongs of §371 in a single indictment rather then specifying one or the other

1.   Defraud the United States, by impairing, obstructing, and impeding the lawful functions of the United States by deceit, craft, and trickery; and 

2. To commit offenses against the United States, that is, a. to violate Executive Orders 12722 and 12724 concerning trade with Iraq, duly issued pursuant to the International Emergency Economic Powers Act; and b.  in a matter within the jurisdiction of the United States Department of Treasury, to knowingly and willfully make and use a false writing and document, knowing the same to contain a materially false, fictitious, and fraudulent entry, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001.  All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371 (Conspiracy)

· Prosecutor could have charged under either the offense against the US or defraud the US 

United States v. Wallach: The court reversed and remanded the district court's decision. Appellant lobbyists performed lobbying and other services for a corporation. Appellants networked for the corporation to facilitate government contracts and to strengthen the corporation's image among investors. Appellants fraudulently performed and reported the services and the corporation misrepresented the nature of some of appellants' services in corporate records, which resulted in fraudulent government filings. Appellants were charged and convicted with racketeering, fraud, and other offenses. On appeal, the court held that a key government witness committed perjury and that the state, instead of taking steps to minimize the perjury and its effects, improperly attempted to rehabilitate the witness. The court held that though the witness' perjury related to a collateral issue and his character, he was the centerpiece of the case and therefore reversal was warranted. The court stated that reversal was required even if the state had not known of the perjury as it infected the trial proceedings and interfered with the jury's ability to weigh testimony. The court held other contentions on appeal lacked merit.

United States v. Stavroulakis: Defendant appealed his conviction for conspiracy to launder money, bank fraud, and possession of forged securities. He contended that the government failed to prove a conspiracy to launder money because he and his co-conspirator did not agree on the source of the funds to be laundered, that the indictment failed to charge bank fraud, and that the prosecutor exercised one of her peremptory challenges in a racially discriminatory manner. The court affirmed, holding that the evidence established that defendant and his co-conspirator agreed on the essential nature of a scheme to launder money and as long as the illegal activity was one enumerated by 18 U.S.C.S. § 1956 (c)(7), it was not essential that the parties agree on the same illegal activity. The court further held that the indictment was sufficient to allege bank fraud as it tracked the language of 18 U.S.C.S. § 1344 (a)(1) with respect to bank fraud and that it sufficiently informed defendant of the charges against him. The court further held that defendant did not show circumstances raising an inference of racial discrimination in jury selection by the prosecutor.

· Defendant argues that there is no agreement on conspiracy (money laundering from narcotics vs. gambling)

· Statute to get at money laundering (not concerned with source of the money).

“Defraud” Clause

· not C/L fraud

· may involve misrep’n or use of dishonest means

· don’t have to intend to prevent gov’t action

· could be violation of customary practices/duties of govt office

· don’t have to show actual contact b/w conspirators & gov’t

Plurality Requirement

· A conspiracy requires an agreement between two or more human minds

· A defendant cannot conspire solely with his own corporation (Stevens) or solely with a federal undercover agent

· Two corporations can conspire together, but not if they operate through the same agent

· Individual can conspire w/ corporation unless that person is the sole stockholder of the corporation (US v. Stevens)

· Corporation can be liable for conspiracy entered into by its agents (Stevens)

· Wharton’s rule – says that if two persons are required to commit the crime – bribery, bigamy, etc. – then you can’t charge conspiracy. ??? But Cts have limited this rule when there’s a third party involved – then there CAN be a conspiracy.

· United States v. Stevens: Defendant was convicted of presenting false claims to a federal agency under 18 U.S.C.S. § 287, making false statements to a federal agency under 18 U.S.C.S. § 1001, and defrauding federally insured banks under 18 U.S.C.S. §§ 1014, 1344, in connection with a contract he had with the Navy to build an automated storage and retrieval system. He received payments from the government for work that was never done, and obtained loans from banks by listing as security income derived from the government contract. He was also convicted of conspiring with his corporation, of which he was the sole owner, to commit the criminal acts. He appealed his convictions and the appellate court affirmed in part and reversed in part. The court ruled that the trial court erred when it instructed the jury about conspiracy because although a corporation can be a member of a conspiracy such conspiracy requires at least two human members. The court ruled that the trial court properly instructed the jury on "specific intent," and on the term "false and material." The court ruled that the trial court's restitution order was sufficient to permit appellate review as to the basis for the restitution amount.

Impossibility (Wallach – [817])

· Not a defense to conspiracy

· The dangers of a conspiracy still exist even if, unknown to the conspirators, it will be impossible for them to achieve their criminal goals

· The agreement is a “distinct evil” which may exist and be punished whether or not the substantive crime occurs

Withdrawl (Jimenez Recio – [821])

· Conspiracy does not automatically terminate simply because the government, unbeknownst to some of the conspirators, has defeated the conspiracy's object.

· SoL begins to run upon withdrawal

· Defendant won’t have Pinkerton liability for crimes committed AFTER withdrawal

· Co-conspirator stmts made after withdrawal aren’t admissible as to the withdrawer

· To withdraw: ceasing participation w/ conspiracy isn’t enough; need to conduct affirmative acts inconsistent w/ object of conspiracy and communicated in a manner reasonably calculated to reach co-conspirators (US v. US Gypsum Co)

Essential Nature of Agreement

· US v. Stavroulakis [824] (thought dirty money from gambling, not drugs)

· while conspirators need not agree on every detail of venture, there must be proof beyond reasonable doubt of agreement on essential nature of plan.
· For money laundering, as long as money originated from one of the §1956(c)(7) categories, not essential that the conspirators agree on the same activity

· Required Mental State

· Must show (1) intent to agree and (2) intent that the object offenses be committed

Types of Conspiracies

“Wheel” analogy – one person at center, with multiple “spokes.”  To be a single conspiracy, “spokes” must be aware of each other and do something to further a common criminal goal.

· example: Rostenkowski

· 4 schemes: stamps, stationary, payroll, cars

· risky to charge as one conspiracy b/c car guys probably didn’t know about the stamps, etc.

· better to treat as four conspiracies

“Chain” analogy – each conspirator is a link in the chain, dependent on the other links for the conspiracy’s overall success

Variance – prosecution charges one conspiracy, but proves multiple conspiracies – conviction may be thrown out if defendant was prejudiced

Pinkerton Rule

· Each member of a conspiracy is liable for substantive crimes committed by co-conspirators -- even if they did not actually participate in those crimes -- if the crimes were committed during the course and in furtherance of the conspiracy, were within the scope of the conspiracy, and were reasonably foreseeable as a necessary/natural consequence of the agmt.

· United States v. Tilton: Appellant was convicted of four counts of mail fraud, 18 U.S.C.S. § 1341, one count of interstate travel in violation of the Travel Act, 18 U.S.C.S. § 1952, and one count of conspiracy to violate those provisions, 18 U.S.C.S. § 371. Appellant sought review of that judgment, which was affirmed. The court found no abuse of discretion on the part of the trial court when it rejected appellant's motion for a continuance. Appellant also challenged the introduction of statements made by his alleged co-conspirators. The court stated that the admission of the hearsay statements of a co-conspirator was contingent on the existence of independent evidence of the conspiracy that was sufficient to establish a prima facie case. Furthermore, the trial court was required to instruct the jury to that effect. The court held that the needed evidence existed and found no error on the trial court's part. Moreover, the court found that only one conspiracy existed and rejected appellant's contention that there was a variance between his indictment and the proof at trial. Finally, the court found that there was sufficient evidence to support each of appellant's convictions.

· Once conspiracy is begun, co-conspirators are liable for other reasonably foreseeable crimes committed
Statute of limitations – in Fed system for prosecutors is usually 5 years.

· You can usually be charged with “consp to commit X” AND “commission of X.” If you can’t get the D on commission, you can often get them on the consp b/c it requires intent and consp but not actual attainment of that crime – thus easier to prove often.

· It’s possible to charge several corporations for conspiracy – as long as there are real people at each who can be shown to commit the crimes.

· Withdrawal – to WD from a conspiracy, you have to notify all the members that you are withdrawing. But you do not HAVE to go to the police.

RICO

· not widely used, but often controversial

· meant to go after OC, but b/c statute drawn so broad, captures lots of other activity

· abused most in civil suits: treble damages/atty fees; lead to overuse by plaintiffs 

· courts often try to put limits on breadth of RICO, but usually struck down

· Four kinds of conduct penalized under RICO (all involve using a business to use a crime)

· To “use or invest” any income derived from a pattern of racketeering, in an enterprise.

· To acquire or maintain control of any enterprise through a pattern of racketeering

· For any person “employed of associated with any enterprise” to conduct the affairs of the enterprise through a pattern of racketeering activity.

· Conspiracy to commit any of the above acts.

(Eliason comments on RICO)

· very confusing to explain to jury

· need approval of main Justice to bring RICO case:  don’t approve for ordinary WCC; need a “RICO injury” (i.e. super-conspiracy)

· can be used in public corruption, but some potential backlash

Elements – 18 USC 1962(c)

1)  Defendant was “associated with” or “employed by;”

2)  an “enterprise” affecting interstate commerce; AND

3) defendant engaged or participated in the conduct of the enterprise’s affairs;

4) through a “pattern of racketeering activity.” (“PORA”)

· usually, enterprise can’t be named as a defendant in 1962(c) (can be w/ (a) & (b))

Other RICO Sections

1962(a) – prohibits use of funds obtained through a PORA to acquire an interest in, or to establish or operate, any enterprise

· goes to original purpose of RICO – infiltration of legitimate enterprises

1962(b) – prohibits using a PORA to acquire or maintain an interest in or control of any enterprise

1962(d) – prohibits conspiracies to violate sections (a), (b), or (c)

“Enterprise”

· Defined at 1961(4)

· “Enterprise” includes both legitimate and illegitimate enterprises  (Turkette)

· US v. Turkette [847] (enterprise was the drug/arson/bribery ring)

Enterprise = any union/group of individuals associated in fact

· Enterprise does not need to have an economic motive (statute says “affect” I/C; enterprise can have detrimental affect w/out a profit-seeking motive)  (Nat’l Org. of Women v. Scheidler)

· Enterprise generally must be distinct from the pattern of racketeering activity itself

· Cheng v. Chen [853] (majority rule – some don’t require structure)

· Need showing that organization has existence beyond what’s necessary to commit acts of racketeering

· Not difficult when legal entities involved (corps, estates)

· Look for structure, defined roles (See association in fact)

· Don’t need to show function wholly unrelated to racketeering activity

· More than a sum of criminal acts (otherwise would just be conspiracy

· Args for this reasoning “enterprise” meaningless if only had to show predicate acts of racketeering accords w/ RICO focus on organized crime direct language of 1962(c)

“Association in Fact” Enterprise

· Enterprise must function as a continuing unit

· Participants must function with a common purpose

· Enterprise must have some identifiable structure

· Enterprise must be distinct from the defendant “person”

· Cedric Kushner v. King [860]

· RICO protect from unlawful use of enterprise (legit/illegit) as vehicle through which unlawful activity is committed

· Use of corporation by sole owner for racketeering activity satisfies RICO statutes for two distinct entities

· Entities here were factually the same, but legally distinct

“Racketeering Activity”

· Defined at 1961(1)

· Includes nine categories of state offenses and dozens of federal crimes

· White collar RICO predicates include mail and wire fraud, Hobbs Act, bribery, obstruction of justice, and money laundering

· Defendant need not be charged with or convicted of the predicate acts (but would usually charge)

“Pattern of Racketeering Activity”

· Defined at 1961(5)

· RICO cases often fail (esp civil) b/c of failure to show pattern in pleading/proof

· Must be at least two acts of racketeering activity within a ten year period

· Pattern need not involve multiple schemes, but there must be “continuity plus relationship” in the acts of racketeering activity (Northwestern Bell)

· HJ Inc. v. Northwestern Bell Tel. Co]

· Don’t need to show multiple illegal schemes (as 8th cir said)

· DO need to show at least 2 predicate acts in 10 yrs

· Need to show “relatedness” and “continuity”
· “relatedness”

· exists if the acts have the same or similar purposes, results, participants, victims, or methods of cms’n or otherwise are interrelated by distinguishing characteristics AND are not isolated events

· “continuity” – two ways

· (1) proving sequence of predicate acts related to each other extending over substantial period of time (more than a few weeks/months) (“closed-ended pattern”)

· (2) even if over short period of time, continuity can be shown if there’s an implicit/explicit threat of repetition extending into the future (“open-ended pattern”)

H.J. Inc. v. Northwestern Bell Telephone Company (US 1989)  Facts: D (NW Bell phone company) charged under RICO, accused of bribing Minnesota PUC to set favorable rates for phone service. Dist Ct dismissed, following 8th Circuit’s “extremely restrictive” test for what constitutes a “pattern” of rack activity (8th Circ said the P must prove “multiple illegal schemes”, not just multiple illegal acts).

Held:That test is too restrictive. Looking at leg history, it seems that Cong meant “pattern” to mean:

· Continuity (of acts)

This is “both a closed- and open-ended concept” – can mean either a closed period of repeated conduct, or past conduct that threatens to continue into the future somehow – e.g. neighborhood punk who demands “protection” insurance.

So it’s enough to show a series of related predicates extending over a substantial period of time, more than just a few months or weeks.  This all requires a factual, case-by-case determination.

· plus relationship (between the predicates) – what is this? (see P 140)


same or similar purposes


results


victims


methods of commission

RE: Amici’s claim that RICO was meant to apply only to “illegitimate” enterprises – NO – plain language makes it apply to businesses engaged in illegal activity, as well as criminal organizations doing the same thing. I.e. RICO does NOT require a nexus to organized crime.

Conduct of the Enterprise’s Affairs 

· 1962(c) requires that the defendant conduct or participate in the conduct of the enterprise’s affairs

· “Conduct” requires some element of direction.  To participate in the conduct of the affairs, one must have some part in directing those affairs.  Participate in the “operation and management” of the enterprise itself (Reves v. Ernst & Young [877])

· “operated” not just by upper mgmt, but also lower level employees; can also be operated by outsider who exert control (i.e. w/ bribery, etc.); 

· merely auditing books not enough

· Unclear to what extent this may apply to lower-level employees or outsiders

RICO Conspiracy – 1962(d)

· Makes it a crime to conspire to violate sections (a), (b), or (c)

· No requirement that each conspirator personally agree to commit at least two predicate acts (no overt act requirement); just agmt in the RICO conspiracy is enough (Salinas v. US [895])

· Issues arise concerning how to define and prove the scope of the conspiratorial agreement (US v. Elliott [885])

· US v. Elliott

· No need to agree on crimes, only need to agree to further the enterprise

· Contrast to Pinkerton conspiracy liability, need agmt on criminal objective; acts of enterprise are less foreseeable;  Could have car thieves liable for murders

Forfeiture

· One of the great advantages of the RICO statute for the prosecution

· 1963(a) provides that the defendant shall forfeit to the US any interest in the RICO enterprise and any property constituting or derived from proceeds of the racketeering activity

· can cut off funds for defendants legal fight

· note: money laundering allows too, less cplx than RICO

Word of Faith World Outreach Center Church Inc. v. Sawyer (5th Cir. 1996)

Facts: Church was fraudulently promising parishioners that it would pray over things they sent in via mail; ABC news and a consultant of some sort did an exposé on them, harming reputation and membership of the church. Church sues Diane Sawyer, ABC news, and the consultant guy under RICO for trying to drive the Church out of business. Trial court dismissed for failure to state a valid RICO claim.

Issue: has P successfully pled a “pattern?” Focus on the “relationship” element – between the predicates and the threat of continuing activity. This is established if the acts have the the same or similar purposes, results, participants, victims, or methods of commission.

Vild v. Visconsi (6th Cir. 1992)

Facts: Ds (involved in series of real estate enterprises) were sued by P (Vild), who had failed in his scheme to market interests in one of those ventures, and brought claims of RICO, negligence, breach of K, etc. D said that P failed to state claim, and moved for sanctions under Rule 11. 

Facts – Ds made material misrepresentations to P by saying that they had enough start-up capital to begin business operations.

The RICO claim: P says that Ds made threats, phone calls and misreps, and these together formed a “pattern” of predicates.

 P then sought to introduce several amended complaints, adding new co-defendants and new charges.

Enterprise: 

Defined at 1961(4)

“Enterprise” includes both legitimate and illegitimate enterprises  (Turkette)

Enterprise generally must be distinct from the pattern of racketeering activity itself (Chang)

US v. Console (3rd Cir. 1993)

Facts: D lawyers set up scam operation where they would refer accident victims to local doctor, and both together would defraud insurance companies by inflating charges. Convicted on RICO and mail fraud charges.

D arguments: 

· on the “enterprise” element, govt failed to prove the 3 parts of the Turkette test; instead they showed only that the fraud was done on an “ad hoc” basis. Rejected: EV was sufficient for all 3 elements.

· govt failed to allege and prove the required relationship of the various actors: Ds construe RICO to mean that one party must be a “legal entity” and one “not a legal entity”. Rejected: prior case law held this is not the case.

a. Reves v. Ernst & Young (US 1993)

i.  Facts: “Farmers Co-op” operated in Arakansas and Oklahoma starting in 1946. In 1980, its general manager began taking loans from the co-op to finance construction of a gasohol plant by his company (White Flame). He borrowed $4 million; he and the accountant for the companies (same guy for both) indicted for federal tax fraud.

ii.  Issue: must P in a RICO case show that D participated in the operation/mgmt of the enterprise itself?

United States v. Turkette: Defendant was convicted under the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act (RICO), 18 U.S.C.S. §§ 1961-1968, for conspiracy to conduct and participate in the affairs of an enterprise, engaged in interstate commerce, through a pattern of racketeering activities. The enterprise conducted illegal activities. The appellate court reversed the judgment and held that the term "enterprise" as used in RICO applied to legitimate enterprises, not illegitimate enterprises. The Supreme Court reversed the appellate court's judgment. The language and structure of RICO did not limit its application to legitimate enterprises. Further, the legislative history indicated that Congress intended the term "enterprise" to include legitimate and well as illegitimate enterprises.

· Proof of enterprise – formal or informal and functions as a unit

· Distinguishing 

Chang v. Chen: In appellants' action against appellee sales agents for alleged violations of the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act (RICO), 18 U.S.C.S. §§ 1961-1968, the district court dismissed the second amended complaint without leave to amend for failure to allege a cognizable RICO enterprise. Appellants sought review, and the court affirmed, finding that appellants failed to allege an organization, formal or informal, with sufficient structure to satisfy the enterprise element of 18 U.S.C.S. § 1962(c), (d). The court found that appellants did not allege a structure to the organization beyond that which was inherent in the alleged acts of racketeering activity or the existence of a system of authority that guided the operation of the alleged enterprise. Although each appellee performed the same specific functions in each transaction, there was no decision-making apparatus that limited or guided appellees in the performance of their respective duties and each appellee conducted his or her role in the alleged fraudulent real estate transactions autonomously.

· Looks like a 371 conspiracy crime – RICO requires something more

· Is there a structured enterprise that does anything other than the predicate acts?

· This is the majority view, the minority view is that predicate activity is enough to constitute enterprise

Cedric Kushner Promotions Ltd. V. King: Petitioner alleged that respondent violated RICO by engaging in a pattern of criminal activity in the operation of respondent's business. Respondent argued that, as president and sole shareholder of respondent's closely held corporation, respondent could not be a person operating a separate enterprise as required for liability under RICO. The United States Supreme Court held that, while the enterprise required by the statute must be more than the person operating under another name, the requisite distinctness between respondent and his corporation was established since they were legally different entities. The formal legal distinction between respondent and his corporation was sufficient to apply RICO to respondent's conduct, and it made no difference whether respondent was acting within the scope of his corporate employment when he allegedly engaged in the criminal activities.

· Person must be “associated with” or “employed by” the enterprise

· In this case, one man corporation, is a legally distinct entity from the corporation

· Is there an additional enterprise that can be charged

· A or B do not have the same problem

“Association in Fact” Enterprise

Enterprise must function as a continuing unit

Participants must function with a common purpose

Enterprise must have some identifiable structure

Enterprise must be distinct from the defendant “person”

United States v. Elliott

Defendants were accused of conspiring to violate the RICO, 18 U.S.C.S. 1961 et seq. The evidence at trial implicated the six defendants in more than 20 different criminal endeavors. The jury found the defendants guilty. On appeal, two defendants contended that their acts were not proscribed by the substantive RICO provision under which they were charged because their acts were not committed in furtherance of the affairs of an "enterprise". The appellate court disagreed. The evidence in the case demonstrated the existence of an enterprise, a criminal network loosely connected. Here, defendants committed arson, assisted in a car theft ring, fenced goods stolen from interstate commerce, murdered a key witness, and dealt in narcotics. Defendants directly and indirectly participated in the enterprise's affairs through a pattern of racketeering activity. Thus, the defendants' convictions were affirmed except as to one defendant against whom the record was not sufficient to support the jury verdict on the conspiracy charge.

Lumping defendants together – agreeing to participate in the enterprise

Salinas v. United States: Defendant argued that the government must have proven that a bribe in some way affected federal funds before the bribe violated 18 U.S.C.S. § 666(a)(1)(B), and that there could be no conspiracy to violate RICO under 18 U.S.C.S. § 1962(d), unless he himself committed or agreed to commit the two predicate acts requisite for a substantive RICO offense under 18 U.S.C.S. § 1962(c). The court held that the text of 18 U.S.C.S. § 666(a)(1)(B) was unambiguous that it did not require the government to prove federal funds were involved in the bribery transaction. Rather, § 666(a)(1)(B) was designed to extend federal bribery prohibitions to bribes offered to state and local officials employed by agencies receiving federal funds. The court held there was no requirement of an overt act or specific act in the RICO conspiracy provision that required that at least one of the conspirators have committed an act to effect the object of the conspiracy, defendant knew about and agreed to facilitate a racketeering scheme and that was sufficient to support a conviction under 18 U.S.C.S. § 1962(d).

Public Corruption

4 statutes are used to prosecute corrupt public officials:

1. Mail Fraud (18 USC 1341)

2. RICO (18 USC 1961)

3. Conspiracy (18 USC 371)

4. Hobbes Act (18 USC 1951)

· Prohibits obstructing, delaying, or affecting (any interstate commerce) commerce or

· the movement of any article in commerce

· by robbery or extortion
· “exortion” = obtaining prop from another w/o his consent, induced by wrongful use of actual or threatened force, violence, or fear, 

· or under color of official right. (see McCormick v. US)

· or attempt/conspiracy to do so.

· Fined up to $10,000, or up to 20 years in prison, or both.

Bribery

18 U.S.C. 201(b) --- (201(b)(2) = bribee (PO), 201(b)(1) – briber)

· A “public official;” (or the person who gives the bribe) 

· Corruptly;

· Demands, seeks, receives, accepts, or agrees to receive and accept, something of value; 

· In exchange for being influenced in the performance of an official act, or for being induced to do or omit to do an act in violation of his/her official duty, or for being influenced to commit a fraud against the U.S.

Gratuities

18 U.S.C. 201(c) --- (201(c)(1)(b) = bribee (PO), 201(c)(1)(a) = briber)

1) A “public official;” (or the person who gives the gratuity)

2) Knowingly and willfully;

3) Demands, seeks, receives, accepts, or agrees to receive and accept, something of value;

4) For or because of any official act performed or to be performed.

“Public Official”

· Statute applies only to public officials, not to private commercial bribery

· “Public official” includes not only federal employees, but also state employees or private individuals who are administering federal programs or funds, or who occupy a position of public trust with federal responsibilities

· Dixson v. US [597 n.2]: officers of private, non-profit administering federal grants = “public official” for purposes of §201

· Must possess some degree of official responsibility for carrying out a federal program or policy

· “occupy a position of public trust with official federal responsibilities”

· Need to show duties of an official character

· US v. Thomas [SUP 52]: Guard employed by private company that operated detention facility under contract with Immigration and Naturalization Service (INS) was "public official" within meaning of federal bribery statute; guard performed same duties and had same responsibilities as federal corrections officer at federal prison, and acted on behalf of United States under authority of INS, and thus occupied position of public trust
Level of Intent

· Bribery requires a “corrupt” intent; gratuities does not

· Corrupt intent is defined as acting with the intent to influence, or to be influenced in, the performance of official acts.

· Bribery: intent that the public official be influenced in a particular way in connection with a particular official act (intent to corrupt particular govt action)

· Gratuity: no quid pro quo; only requires that the payment be intend as compensation for an official act (appearance of improper influence)

· US v. Johnson [SUP 54]: 

· it need not be shown that public official to whom bribe was offered was actually corrupted by offer and it is not necessary to show that official accepted the bribe, or that object of bribe was even attainable; in fact, so long as money is offered with corrupt intent, official does not necessarily even need to be aware of bribe.
· Government must show that money was knowingly offered to official with intent and expectation that, in exchange for money, some act of a public official would be influenced; 
· money must be given with more than some generalized hope or expectation of ultimate benefit on part of donor and must be offered, in other words, with intent and design to influence official action in exchange for donation
Timing

· If intent to make payment made after an act or the decision to act, can only charge a gratuity

· Two approaches if intent formulated b/f act (No S.Ct. decision yet):

(1) gratuity if gift given w/ expectation that the public official will be more likely to act in a specific way

(2) gratuity in context of future action is simply a reward for an action the public official has already decided to undertake; if no decision yet, then it’s a bribery

“Thing of value”

· Very broadly defined, to include almost anything of subjective value to the recipient.

· Note that a bribe may be received personally or on behalf of “any other person or entity;” a gratuity must be received “personally.” 

US v. Gorman [SUP 56]: future employment opportunities and loans although fully repaid are things of value for purposes of §201

US v. Sun-Diamond [SUP 58]: paying for girlfriend’s airline ticket is a thing of value b/c of her companionship; monetary worth not sole measure of value; 
Bribery vs. Gratuity Statute

· Key to bribery is the influence – corrupt intent to influence

· Gratuity is distinguished from campaign contributions by how the money is handled

Prior to Sun-Diamond

· Status gratuity theory – unlinkable to any particular act (currying favor)

· Sun-Diamond rejected this based on the statute 

Weststar case-

“Attempted” bribery is allowed – intent doesn’t have to be shared on both sides

Crime is the agreement (aftermath doesn’t matter)

Singleton case-

· Gift of a thing of value for testimony at trial

· 10th Circuit opinion (en banc)

· Eliason thinks that disclosure affects

"whoever" does not include the United States acting in its sovereign capacity, and thus does not include assistant United States attorney acting as alter ego of the United states in offering an accomplice leniency in exchange for truthful testimony; word "whoever" connotes a being, while the United States is an inanimate entity, and applying the statute to the government would deprive the sovereign of a recognized or established prerogative.
“Official Acts”

· Bribe or gratuity must be connected to an “official act” as defined in the statute; Section 201 is not a general ban on public officials receiving outside income or cashing in on government connections

· Any decision/action, that could be brought or is pending, that’s w/in official capacity, or in such official’s place of trust or profit;

· US v. Muntain [598]: using office and contacts gained through office not enough to constitute an official act; concerned w/ corruption of decision making power – substituting will of decision maker w/ will of briber;

· US v. Sun-Diamond [587]: MUST HAVE LINK TO OFFICIAL ACT, simply making payment for goodwill is not enough; otherwise, any gift to a govt official could be considered a bribe (i.e. football jersey to president from Super Bowl champions)

· Official doesn’t have to have power to influence decision; enough that there was intent to influence an official act

Hobbs Act – 18 U.S.C. 1951

Applies to robbery, extortion by force, violence, or fear, and extortion “under color of official right.”

Extortion Under Color of Official Right

Elements:

1)  A public official obtained property of another;

· property here is probably narrower than “thing of value”

2)  With consent;

3)  Under color of official right;

4)  Causing an effect on interstate commerce.

· de minimis effects on I/C are enough (law firm buying legal pads)

· Easy standard under a depletion of assets theory

· Can even be illegal drug trafficking!

5)  mens rea: show that defendant purposefully/knowingly used an official position to obtain property

Evans v. United States: Petitioner was convicted of extortion in violation of the Hobbs Act, 18 U.S.C.S. § 1951, as a result of bribes taken from an undercover agent. The conviction was affirmed by the appellate court, which held that petitioner need not take any specific action to induce the offering of the benefit. Petitioner filed a petition for certiorari, which was accepted by the court. The court affirmed the decision of the appellate court because the government needed only to show that petitioner obtained a payment to which he was not entitled, knowing that the payment was made in return for official acts. The court found that there was nothing in either the statutory text or the legislative history of § 1951 that was a contrary direction by Congress to the common-law meaning of extortion. The wrongful acceptance of a bribe established all the inducement that the statute required. The court found that the jury instruction was proper because the quid pro quo requirement was satisfied. The offense was completed at the time petitioner received the payment in return for his agreement to perform specific official acts. The fulfillment of the quid pro quo was not an element of the offense.

· Based on the common law definition of extortion.

· Passive acceptance of money – Supreme Court says that no inducement is required

· Inducement doesn’t apply to under color of official right

· By virtue of position there is automatically inducement

Extortion by use of fear of economic harm

· Fear viewed from victim’s perspective; must actually and reasonably believe (1) the defendant had power to harm the victim and (2) defendant would exploit that power to the victim’s detriment

· Offers for preferential treatment are not extortion, but threats to withhold access to a fair, level playing field is extortion

“Under color of official right”

· No “shakedown,” threat, or explicit demand by the official is required“ . . . The Government need only show that a public official has obtained a payment to which he was not entitled, knowing that the payment was made in return for official acts.”  Evans v. US [617]

· B/c of this decision, very little to distinguish from bribery; law just seems like bribery extended to state/local corruption

· Not limited to federal officials (as it is in bribery, etc), also applies to state/local govt officials

United States v. Herring Case: Appellant claimant was indicted for knowingly and willfully making false statements to an agency of the United States in violation of 18 U.S.C.S. § 1001. Appellant had applied for and received unemployment compensation from Georgia. Appellant falsely stated that he was unemployed. The unemployment benefits received by appellant were from Georgia state funds. The United States Secretary of Labor had approved Georgia's unemployment program and Georgia received federal funding for administrative costs from the United States Secretary of Labor. Appellant filed a motion to dismiss the indictment, arguing that 18 U.S.C.S. § 1001 did not confer federal jurisdiction to prosecute individuals who made false statements on an application for unemployment. The court affirmed the judgment of the district court denying the motion to dismiss because false statements need not be presented to an agency of the United States and federal funds need not actually be used to pay a claimant for federal jurisdiction to exist under 18 U.S.C.S. § 1001.
· Sweeping statement of what constitutes “within the jurisdiction”

· Sufficient federal interest in state program with federal funding

· Campaign contributions are extortion only if (1) payments were induced by fear… or (2) payments were made under color of official right (in return for an explicit promise or undertaking by the official to perform/not an official act) McCormick v. US [630]

· After McCormick, circuits seem to require “quid pro quo” in all color of official right cases; App Cts are split on the std for a quid pro quo; some require “explicit promise or undertaking” (McCormick), others only require showing that a public official has obtained payment he’s not entitled to knowing payment made in return for official acts (Evans)

· Also issue whether an actual agreement can be shown, or whether it can be implied/inferred from the course of conduct

Brogan v. United States: Petitioner union officer was convicted of accepting unlawful cash payments from an employer and making a false statement within the jurisdiction of a federal agency in violation of 18 U.S.C.S. § 1001. He argued on appeal that his answer of "no" to agents' questions during initial investigation was an "exculpatory no," the central doctrine being that a simple denial of guilt did not come within § 1001. The court affirmed the conviction and held that § 1001 covered "any" false statement, and the word "no" in response to a question assuredly made a "statement." The court held that the plain language of § 1001 admitted of no exception for an "exculpatory no." The court held that neither the text nor the spirit of the Fifth Amendment, U.S. Const. amend. V, conferred a privilege to lie. Proper invocation of the Fifth Amendment privilege against compulsory self-incrimination allowed a witness to remain silent, but not to swear falsely.

· “Exculpatory No” doctrine

· lower courts reject exculpatory no

· two arguments

· doesn’t pervert government functions

· 5th amendment dilemma

· limits prosecutorial abuse

· 5th Amendment doesn’t give people the right to lie

· Concurrence and Dissent

· Very broad power to give prosecutors

· Congress could have changed this if they wanted to, but they didn’t

· DOJ policy is not to bring exculpatory no cases

Obstruction of Justice

Obstruction of Justice Statutes

· §1503 – Influencing or injuring officer or juror generally

· §1505 – Obstruction of proceedings b/f depts, agencies and cmtes

· §1510 – Obstruction of criminal investigations

· §1512 – Tampering w/ witness, victim or informant

· §1513 – Retaliating against witness, victim or informant

· §1519 – Destruction, alteration or falsification of records in Federal investigations

· §1520 – Destruction of corporate audit records

Obstruction of Justice – 18 U.S.C. 1503

· Most commonly charged is the “omnibus clause”

· applies to anyone who corruptly influences, obstructs, or impedes the due administration of justice, or endeavors to do so.

· Also applies to endeavoring to influence or injuring jurors/court officer

1503 Obstruction – Elements

1) There is a pending judicial proceeding; 

2) Defendant knows about the proceeding;

· must show defendant knew of proceeding; if witness tampering, knew (or thought) was witness at the proceeding; 

3) Defendant corruptly influences, obstructs, or impedes the proceeding’s due administration of justice, or endeavors to do so. 

United States v. Aguilar:  The government maintained that the judge intended to obstruct justice by lying to a federal agent about his knowledge of the disclosure of a wiretap and violated 18 U.S.C.S. § 2232(c) by disclosing the wiretap even though the authority for the tap had expired. The Court reversed the decision with regard to the § 2232(c) conviction and held that the offense under the statute was complete when the judge disclosed the existence of the wiretap. The statute was not aimed at interference with the possible interception of information, but rather the disclosure of wiretap orders or applications that may lead to interceptions. The fact that interception was not possible because of the expiration of the wiretap order was irrelevant. Additionally, no violation of the judge's First Amendment rights was found. The reversal of the conviction under 18 U.S.C.S. § 1503 was affirmed because the government failed to show that the agent to whom the judge lied was an arm of the grand jury. The agent had not been subpoenaed to testify before a grand jury and it could not be shown that the false statement would have the natural and probable effect of interfering with the due administration of justice.

· to endeavor = the action must have the natural and probable effect of interfering w/ the due administration of justice (US v. Aguilar [385])

· this is known as the “nexus” requirement

· “must have relationship in time, causation, or logic w/ the judicial proceedings”

· need not be successful; just need knowledge/notice that actions will affect the just administration of the proceedings

· “corrupt intent” – US v. Cueto [395] (atty w/ bus interest in illegal gambling)

· atty’s otherwise lawful conduct became obstruction of justice b/c of his financial interest

· it’s not the means employed, but the corrupt intent that is prohibited

· §1505 (admin proceedings) has a corrupt intent definition

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

New 18 U.S.C. 1512(c) – applies to document destruction and other obstruction of “official proceedings”  1512 used to apply only to witness tampering – now it has been expanded “new omnibus clause.”  Tampering with a witness, victim, or an informant

· New 18 U.S.C. 1512(c) – applies to document destruction and other obstruction of “official proceedings” [432]

· 1512(c)(2) – “the new omnibus clause’

· broader official proceeding definition (1503 – due admin of justice)

· proceeding doesn’t have to be pending

· may not need Aguilar nexus

· 1512 (c)(1) overlap w/ 1503 & 1505

· all three require corrupt intent

· overlaps w/ 1505 in terms of admin proceedings; 1503 w/ court/GJ

· but only applies to physical object destruction

· so, if dealing w/ physical objects, easier to get 1512(c)(1) conviction

· don’t need knowledge of pending proceeding; may not need Aguilar nexus either

· New 18 U.S.C. 1519 --  document destruction or alteration in federal agency investigations and bankruptcy [437]

· applies even if done in anticipation of a proceeding

· broader than 1505 – doesn’t require pending proceeding

· overlaps w/ 1512

· weaker intent than 1505

· 1505 – corrupt intent

· 1519 – (1) knowledge of obstructive acts AND (2) intent to obstruct

· Appears to apply to matters w/in jurisdiction of executive branch (congress usually more explicit if including judicial/legis [438])

· New 18 U.S.C. 1520 – destruction of corporate audit records [440]

· doesn’t require corrupt intent, just act “knowingly and willfully”

· establishes a positive duty to retain records and penalizes the “knowing and willful” failure to meet that duty

· § 1505.  Obstruction of proceedings before departments, agencies, and committees 
Whoever, with intent to avoid, evade, prevent, or obstruct compliance, in whole or in part, with any civil investigative demand duly and properly made under the Antitrust Civil Process Act [15 USCS §§ 1311 et seq.], willfully withholds, misrepresents, removes from any place, conceals, covers up, destroys, mutilates, alters, or by other means falsifies any documentary material, answers to written interrogatories, or oral testimony, which is the subject of such demand; or attempts to do so or solicits another to do so; or 
  
Whoever corruptly, or by threats or force, or by any threatening letter or communication influences, obstructs, or impedes or endeavors to influence, obstruct, or impede the due and proper administration of the law under which any pending proceeding is being had before any department or agency of the United States, or the due and proper exercise of the power of inquiry under which any inquiry or investigation is being had by either House, or any committee of either House or any joint committee of the Congress-- 
  
Shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than five years, or both.

(mirror of 1503 for administrative proceedings)

United States v. Cueto: Defendant lawyer requested a state court to issue an injunction that effectively stalled a federal gambling and racketeering investigation. A federal court intervened, and the lawyer was charged with one count of conspiracy to defraud the United States under 18 U.S.C.S. § 371 and three counts of obstruction of justice under the omnibus clause of 18 U.S.C.S. § 1503. A jury convicted the lawyer on all counts, and the lawyer appealed. The court affirmed the convictions because the criminal defense lawyer was not exempt from the law. The court held that a zealous litigator was not protected from criminal prosecution. The court found that the lawyer acted intentionally with a corrupt motive to hinder the administration of justice. The court held that the district court correctly applied the sentencing guidelines to impose a stiffer sentence by refusing to group the three offenses of § 1503.

Defendant argues vagueness – not well taken.  Law applies to lawyers and their litigation tactics.  Wasn’t just an arms length legal representation – lawyer was in business with the client

Perjury

Perjury – Elements

1. Testimony given (or, for 1623, records or documents used) while defendant was under oath; 

2. Testimony (or record or document) was actually false at the time;

3. Defendant knew at the time that it was false;

4. False information was material.

Differences Between 1621 and 1623

Perjury Only (18 U.S.C. 1621) 

1) Applies to testimony not just before a U.S. court or grand jury, but in any proceeding where an oath is authorized by law.

2)  Recantation is not a defense.

3)  Two-witness rule applies. (requires proof by one witness and an add’l corroborating witness)

False Declarations Only (18 U.S.C. 1623)

1)  Applies only to proceedings before or ancillary to a U.S. court or grand jury.

2)  Applies to documents and records as well as to oral testimony.

3)  Proof may be made by two inconsistent statements  -- 1623(c)

4)  Limited recantation defense provided by statute – 1623(d)

5)  No two-witness rule -- (1623(e))

Key differences b/w 1621 & 1623 in a nutshell

· 1623 only applies to court/grand jury proceedings; 1621 not limited

· 1623 allows use of inconsistent statements to prove which of the 2 statements was false; 1621 doesn’t include this provision

· 1623 does away w/ “two-witness rule”

· 1623 provides limited recantation defense; 1621 doesn’t;

Oath

· must be administered by someone authorized to do so (explicit in 1621, implicit in 1623)

Tribunals/Proceedings

· 1621 applies to court/grand jury proceedings, as well as any proceeding where an oath is authorized under federal law (congressional, administrative, etc.)

· “ancillary proceedings” – Dunn v. U.S. [SUP 75]

· interview at atty’s office was not considered an ancillary proceeding

· not all sworn stmts submitted to court/grand jury qualifies under 1623

· only statements made in a “formal” setting are covered by 1623 (like depo w/ stenographer & lawyer); doesn’t include sworn stmt made in informal setting of atty’s office w/out stenographer/opposing counsel

· Note in this case, defendant later adopted stmt in court hearing, would have got him if they’d gone after that one

Falsity

· must show proof beyond reasonable doubt that the stmt was false

· Bronston v. US [308] (Swiss bank accts)

· Literally true stmts are not covered by 1621

· Shouldn’t allow govt to get perjury charge when they could have been more attentive during examination and asked a simple follow-up question

· Ambiguous questions can make it impossible to know whether an answer is true

· Burden on questioner to clarify answers

Inconsistent Statements (for §1623)

· just proof of inconsistency is enough, don’t have to show which stmt is false

· each statement must be material and made w/in SoL period

Intent (DEFENSE)

· for 1621/1623 must prove beyond reas doubt that defendant knew stmt was false at the time it was made

· honest mistake/genuinely faulty recollection not covered

· 1621 – must also show wilfullness to make the perjurous stmt; usually inferred by the jury based on knowning false stmt

Materiality (DEFENSE)

· must prove false statement was material; one that is capable of having an effect on the tribunal/proceeding

· no need to show actual effect to the tribunal/proceeding

· frequently used defense, but rarely succeeds

·  In GJ context, discretion of GJ so broad, most stmts would be considered material

· Ultimately a jury question (Johnson v. US) to find materiality beyond a reasonable doubt

Two-Witness Rule

· Req’d by §1621, not by §1623(e)

· US v. Davis [SUP 69]

· Doesn’t mean two human witnesses, just a 2nd collaboratory source

· Doesn’t need to be sufficient in itself, or even strong evidence – just have to show that in combination w/ direct evidence, it’s inconsistent w/ the defendant’s innocence

· Here, Davis signed a stmt implicating himself ( enough for guilt

Recantation DEFENSE (§1623 only)

· for 1623, complete defense (but difficult to succeed)

· for 1621, not a complete defense, but may go to showing lack of intent

· Elements of 1623 Recantation

· (1) while in same continuous court/grand jury proceeding

· (2) if admits to falsity, prosecution can be barred if at time admission made:

· (a) declaration hasn’t substantially affected proceeding, AND

· (b) it hasn’t become manifest that falsity has been or will be exposed

· (Fornaro [SUP 72] says (a) AND (b); 8th cir says OR (Smith, [SUP 74 n.1], most others say AND)

· Explaining away false testimony w/ faulty memory later won’t work

· Question of law (court decision)

Common Defenses to Perjury

1. Literal truth
2. Question was ambiguous
3. No criminal intent (thought it was true) 
4. Recantation (for 1623)
Corporate Criminal Liability

· C/L did not recognize corporate liability – b/c no mens rea –changed with New York Central.

1. Respondeat superior approach – used by all Fed Cts and some state Cts.

a. Elements

· crime must have been committed by an agent of the corporation

· within scope of agency/employment

· with an intent, at least in part, to benefit the corporation.

b. if there’s any benefit, govt won’t hestitate to pursue the corporation. See DOJ handout from supplement.

Collective Knowledge – when no indiv corp agent possesses mens rea necessary for the crime, may aggregate all knowledge and attribute it to the organization

2. Model Penal Code - 

a. Elements

1. authorized or recklessly tolerated

2. by board of director sor high mgmt agent.

3. principal was an agent of the corporation

4. acting on behalf of corp or to benefit it.

5. acting w/in scope of employment.

b. This is somewhat narrower.

· some want return to C/L days without corp. liability for actions of indiv members.

· a corporation is liable for “regulatory offenses,” or when the criminal offense was authorized, requested, committed, or recklessly tolerated by the board of directors or high managerial officials. (not in Fed or most states)

Remedies in corporate liability cases: can do fines, can also seize the property/objects used in commission of the crime – e.g. take away the land where the drugs were sold/used, etc.

Critique of Respondeat Superior Standard

· Imputes the intent of one person to the entire company

· Fails to distinguish between “bad” corporations (actively encourage criminal activity) and those with just a “rogue employee.”

· Tort law (respondeat superior) being placed in criminal context (NY Central)

Does corporate criminal liability make sense?

Pros





Cons


 

Corp is a bad actor



Innocents Suffer

Encourage Monitoring



Good corp may still be punished

Ensure information flow



No real deterrent

STIGMA (most imp)





--most corps don’t want “criminal” ID

Fairness

Can assist prosecution/cooperation

Corporate Compliance Efforts

· Generally irrelevant to criminal liability

· Corporation can be held liable even if employee violated express instructions or company policy  (Hilton Hotels)

· But may be important in prosecutor’s decision whether to charge, or at sentencing

Consideration for prosecution (and possible alternative theories):

· company’s history of violations

· pervasiveness of wrongdoing within the company

· level of the employee who committed the crime

· corporate compliance efforts

· corporate “personality” or culture

Commonwealth v. Beneficial Finance Co. (Supreme Judicial Ct of Mass, 1971)

Facts: D corporation and its officers  bribed public officials in Mass 

United States v. One Parcel of Land (7th Cir. 1992)

Facts: family corporation (“Modernaire”) owned parcel. Son (Harry III) sold drugs on the land w/o knowledge or consent of his parents, the other owners of the corporation. Govt did in rem action to take the property. Parents’ defense: statutory “innocent owner defense” (21 USC 881(a)(7)). Dist Ct gave SJ to govt.

Issue: Can Harry III’s knowledge of the criminal acts be imputed to the corporation?  does statute require D to show (a) lack of consent AND (b) lack of knowledge, in order to get the innocent owner defense, or just (a) lack of consent? 

Held: we don’t decide that issue b/c we find that the corporation did not have knowledge, so it could not consent.  Statute requires Ct to use a subjective, not objective approach – therefore, if corporation can show it had not actual knowledge, then it wins.  Rejects govt’s argument: a corporate principal’s knowledge is less than the collective knowledge of its corporate agents; where an agent obtains knowledge while acting outside the scope of his agency, the presumption (that corp knows) is unfounded, and Ct should not impute the agent’s knowledge to the corporation. 

· Acting within scope of employment requires something more than just being on the corporate premises. Agent is acting outside scope of emp when he is not acting at all for the benefit of his corporation; and when doing so, the knowledge he gains is not imputed to the corporation.  Thus we will not impute Harry’s knowledge to the corporation. He was acting only for himself, despite the extent of his authority. 
· Rejects defense argument: “Adverse agent” exception (where an agent doing something to damage the corp will not have his knowledge attributed to corp b/c can’t assume he’ll report it) does not apply here.

· Rejects govt argument as unnecessary: “Sole actor” exception does not apply.

Dissent (Posner): Harry III was not just one co-owner – he was the sole manager, and controlled the use of the property. If he wanted to turn the corporation into a criminal enterprise, there was nobody to deny him.

Corporate Officer Criminal Liability

Personal Liability of Corporate Executives

· If committed the crime themselves

· If aided, abetted, counseled, or caused others to commit the crime (18 U.S.C. 2)

· If conspired with corporation and/or others to commit the crime

· If the “responsible corporate officer” for certain offenses (rare)

Responsible Corporate Officer Doctrine – w/ strict liability offenses (FDCA, EPA), all you have to show it that the corp officer had responsibility for the matter (negligence std) (US v. Park [284])

Defenses to Strict Liability: (1) no reasonable relation (nexus) to the activity; (2) Park has language that may permit a “powerlessness” argument [293 n.3]

A. Liability of Corporate Directors or Executives
· If committed the crime themselves

· If aided, abetted, counseled, or caused others to commit the crime (18 U.S.C. 2)

· If conspired with corporation and/or others to commit the crime

US v. Park (US 1975 – Burger)

Facts: D1 (Acme Markets Inc.) pleaded guilty to violating Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act by allowing rodents to contaminate or “adulterate” its food while sitting in a warehouse. D2 (CEO of Acme) pleaded not guilty.  Govt’s evidence at trial: FDA warned Acme of unsanitary conditions; did 2 inspections finding rodent stuff. Govt’s witness (Acme’s VP for legal affairs) testified that CEO had broad responsibility for overall operations.  D’s evidence at trial:  D’s own testimony: although D had overall responsibility, Acme was a very complex company and diff people had responsibility for diff things.

The court held that the jury's attention was properly focused on the corporate officer's authority over the conditions that formed the basis of the violations. The main issue for determination was the corporate officer's accountability. The instructions to the jury were not misleading and contained an adequate statement of the law. There was no basis to conclude that the failure of the court to give specific instructions sua sponte was plain error or a defect affecting the corporate officer's substantial rights under Fed. R. Crim. P. 52(b).

United States v. Sun-Diamond Growers: The cooperative's charges were based on the acts of an employee, including giving gifts to the Secretary of Agriculture and making individual contributions to the political campaign of the secretary's brother, which were unknowingly reimbursed by the cooperative's law firm and the cooperative. The court held that the district court erred by charging the jury that it could convict the cooperative under 18 U.S.C.S. § 201(c)(1)(A), even if it found that the gifts were made merely in recognition of the secretary's official position. The cooperative's wire fraud and illegal campaign contribution convictions were proper because its law firm was deprived of the honest services of its agent, under 18 U.S.C.S. § 1346, and temporarily deprived of $ 5,000. Section 1346 did not require intent, only that economic harm was foreseeable. The district court erred by imposing an upward departure based on the secretary's position, while also finding that the guidelines did not contemplate an official in the secretary's position. The member cooperatives could not be made subject to the reporting requirements because they were not defendants or given an opportunity to be heard.

United States v. Hilton Hotels Corp.: The court found that the evidence was clearly sufficient to establish that appellant hotels agreed to prefer suppliers who paid contributions over those who did not. The primary purpose and direct effect of appellants' agreement was to bring the combined economic power of the hotels to bear upon those suppliers who failed to pay. The exclusion of uncooperative suppliers from the market was the object of the agreement, not merely its incidental consequence. A corporation was liable for acts of its agents within the scope of their authority even when done against company orders. Thus, the general policy statements of appellant's president were no defense. The purchasing agent exercised complete authority. Even if denial of appellant's motion for a copy of the transcript of witness' testimony were treated as tantamount to denying appellants the benefit of the witness' trial testimony, the error, if any, would be harmless. Thus, the court affirmed the ruling.

Investigations

A. General Prosecution Issues:

a. Brady v. Maryland – failure to turn over material exculpatory EV to D violates Due Process, regardless of good or bad faith of the prosecutor.
b. United States v. Agurs – 
B. Criminal Procedure:

a. In criminal cases, unlike civil cases, there are usually no opportunities for interrogatories or depositions. Police and investigative reports are generally exempt from discovery.
b. What IS discoverable – see P 434.
C. Representation of clients:

a. Even if both sides consent to be represented by the same attorney (which means they waive their 6th Amdt right to effective, conflict-free counsel), Ct may not allow it – rationale = safeguard public confidence in system.
b. Also, Model Ethical Rule 1.7 bars repres of mult clients when representing one is “directly adverse” to other.
c. Joint defense agreements (“common interest rule”): parties subj to possible crim liability WRT the same transactions, but represented by different attys, can agree to pursue a joint def effort. Then the communications between them are privileged.
Grand Jury

Federal Grand Jury

· The most powerful tool of the white collar crime prosecutor

· Governed by Fed. R. Crim. Pro. 6

· Usually 20-23 members

· 16 needed for a quorum 

· Vote of 12 needed to indict 

Unique govt function: GJ is separate from other 3 branches of govt; Fed Ct has only a remote supervisory connection to it, and its ability to review/limit GJ proceedings is “not remotely comparable” to Fed Ct’s power over its own proceedings. (US v. Williams, 1992) 
Grand Jury Procedure Fed Rules Crim Proc R 6: Rule 6.

· Rules of evidence generally do not apply

· Prosecutor acts as both advocate and legal advisor

· Defense case need not be presented

· doesn’t have to show exculpatory evidence, but not too ethical and against DOJ guidelines if evidence is substantial (US v. Williams)

· Grand jury votes to indict based on probable cause

Grand Jury Powers in General

Purpose: Designed to guard against govt abuse of people. Goal is to see if there’s enough EV to bring a case – which is why it’s enough just to hear prosecutor’s side, w/ very few safeguards for D. Goal is not to determine guilt/innocene. 
· Subpoena duces tecum – bring person along with documents/items
· Not bound by many procedural, technical rules – e.g.
· no exclusionary rule (US v. Calandra, 1974)
· no hearsay rule (Costello v. US, 1956)
· No Need to Present all Exculpatory Evidence:

United States v. Williams:  Upon the investor's indictment for making false statements to a bank, he claimed that dismissal was warranted because the prosecutor failed to fulfill its obligation to present "substantial exculpatory evidence" to the grand jury. Although the government did not contest the issue in the case immediately at hand, the Court granted certiorari because it did so as a party to the recent proceeding upon which the lower courts relied for their resolution of the issue, and did not concede in the current case the correctness of that precedent. The Court reversed the dismissal holding that the rule requiring disclosure to the grand jury of "substantial exculpatory evidence" was not supported by the trial court's "supervisory power," because the grand jury was an institution over whose functioning the courts did not preside. The Court found that the rule was inconsistent with the traditional function of the grand jury, which was to determine whether enough evidence existed to prosecute, not to allow the accused to put on a defense. The Court refused to convert a non-existent duty of the grand jury itself into an obligation of the prosecutor.

Some rules favor Defendants:
· GJs are bound by strict secrecy requirements.
· Ct may quash/modify the subpoena if compliance would be unreasonable or oppressive.
· Day to day operations – largely free from Dist Ct interference.
· How are they selected – varies from state to state. Fed system: random drawing of indivs.
· Federal system (and most states): prosecutor decides which Ws to call, and which records/objects to request.
· If D believes he should not have to reply to the subpoena, D files Motion to Quash the Subpoena.
Scope of grand jury’s power: very broad – 
where a subpoena is challenged on relevancy grounds, the Dist Ct must deny the Motion to Quash unless it decides there is no reasonable possibility that the category of materials the govt seeks will produce info relevant ot the general subj of the GJ’s investigation. (US v. R. Enterprises, 1991)
US v. R. Enterprises Inc. (US 1991 – O'Connor)  Facts: grand jury investigating interstate transport of porn; issues subpoenas to 3 companies; all 3 move to quash, saying they would require production of materials irrelevant to the grand jury proceeding. Dist Ct denied motions to quash.  Appeals Ct  applied standard from US v. Nixon (which dealt with trial subpoenas, very diff from GJ subps): govt must clear 3 hurldes in order to enfore the grand jury subpoena: relevancy, admissibility, specificity. held that the subpoenas here did not satisfy these standards, and there was no EV in the record that any of the companies had ever shipped porn into E.D. Virginia

· Supreme Ct: reversed (i.e. Dist Ct was right to deny motion to quash).  unlike a normal court, whose JD is premised on a specific case/controversy, a grand jury “paints w/a broad brush” and can investigate merely on suspicion that a law is being violated. Thus govt cannot be expected to justify issuing a subpoena by presenting EV sufficient to establish probable cause, b/c the whole reaon for requesting the info is to see if prob cause exists.  Therefore Appls Ct was wrong to use the multi-factor Nixon test: it would invite delays and detours as Cts try to determine relevance etc of documents. But this is not unfair to Ds, b/c remember that grand jury proceedings are bound by strict secrecy requirements.

· But the GJ powers are not unlimited; no fishing expeditions, and FRCrimProc 17(c) says that “the Ct on motion… may quash/modify the subpoena if compliance would be unreasonable or oppressive.”  

· What is “unreasonable”? It depends on context, but generally, one cannot know if adnvance whether the info sought by the subpoena will be relevant and admissible. It’s very hard for D to show it’s unreasonable: must persuade Ct that it “could not possibly serve any investigative purpose that the GJ could legitimately be pursuing.”
· Law presumes heavily that GJ acts within scope of its authority.
· RULE: where a subpoena is challenged on relevancy grounds, the Dist Ct must deny the Motion to Quash unless it decides there is no reasonable possibility that the category of materials the govt seeks will produce info relevant to the general subj of the GJ’s investigation. So here, Dist Ct correctly denied Ds’ motion to quash.
· STEVENS CONCURRENCE: a more burdensome subpoena should be justified by a higher degree of probably relevance. The Ct’s definition of “reasonable” is too abstract to be useful.
US v. Williams (US 1992- Scalia)
Facts: D indicted by GJ for 7 counts of making false statement/reports for purpose of influencing a federally insured financial institution.  D gave “materially false” statements to 4 banks that overstated value of his assets in order to get approved for loans. After arraignment, Dist Ct granted D’s Brady motion for disclosure of exculpatory portions of GJ transcripts. D reviewed it, then moved to dismiss the indictment, arguing that Govt failed its Brady obligation to present “subst exculp EV” to the GJ.
Supreme Court: reversed Appls Ct and remanded (i.e. Govt wins; no Brady requirement) 
GJ belongs to no branch of Const; its whole purpose is to be separate from all branches. It has an “arms-length” relationship to Fed Cts.
· Because a GJ proceedings is not a “constituent element of a criminal prosecution,” some constl protections do not apply.

· Double Jeopardy Clause (5th Amdt) does not bar a GJ from indicting even if another GJ has chosen not to.

· 6th Amdt right to counsel might not apply before a GJ.
· No exclusionary rule.
· Since the goal of a GJ is to test the validity of a prosecutor’s case, and not a defendants’s, it is unnecessary to impose Brady obligations on a prosecutor WRT a GJ.
Thus courts have no power to require govt to turn over Brady material to a GJ.
STEVENS DISSENT: We do not protect the integrity of the GJ by closing our eyes to prosecutorial misconduct.
Grand Jury Secrecy

Grand Jury Secrecy – Rule 6(e)

· No one may be present but grand jurors, witness, prosecutor, and court reporter

· All participants sworn to secrecy, except the witness

· During deliberations and voting, no one is present but the grand jurors

· Has implications for other proceedings – materials can’t be turned over

Fifth Amendment Issues

Summary of 5th Amendment Privileges

(1) Corporations have no privilege (Hale)

(2) Contents of documents voluntarily made are not privileged (Fisher)

(3) Corporate custodian cannot assert a personal 5th amendment privilege (Braswell)

(4) Sole Proprietor or Individual may have act of production privilege (Doe, Hubbell)

Immunity

· one of prosecutor's most powerful, yet most hazardous (grant immunity to wrong guy) tools

· statutory immunity governed by 18 USC 6002-6005

§6002 - immunity gen'ly

· can be compelled to testify if they have immunity from use directly or indirectly (derivative use) to prosecute the individual

· requires an order from the court to get statutory immunity

prosecutor has to jump through a lot of hoops (many people review request)

· main justice always reviews

· once app'd, motion to court for the immunity; judge then signs order compelling witness to testify

derivative use -- can't follow up on what they say to get new information on them

in theory, could still be prosecuted; but in reality, won't be except under rare circumstances (if govt made no use of testimony);

· if immunized and still refuses to answer -- take to judge to hold in contempt of court (civil)

· Constitution only requires use/derivative use immunity
· 5th am not about privacy - its about not getting prosecuted for the compelled testimony

transactional immunity

· transactional immunity (whether testimony used or not - no way to be prosecuted)

Granting immunity

· prosecutor wants defendant to eat some sort of charge, don't like to grant immunity free and clear

· witness will be more credible if they've taken some punishment for the crime

· Could convict ( after conviction (and appeal), can make them testify - don't have 5th am privilege

· but that takes 3 yrs

· more likely to enter a plea agreement w/ them

· but if they won't plead, but can't make case w/out them -- and more important to get the more serious wrongdoers, then grant immunity

Prosecution after giving immunity?

· as a matter of policy, nobody's going to make a deal any more if you go after them after making deals; will hold back details if it isn't going to protect you

· very difficult to prove that your investigation wasn't tainted by the immunized testimony

KASTIGAR V. UNITED STATES early test of §6002.  "Kastigar hearing" - procedure for trying to prosecute an immunized statute  --prove by preponderance of the evidence that all of your evidence isn't tainted by the immunized testimony  Kastigar got immunity, but he wouldn't answer the questions -- claimed immunity statute was deficient (use/derivative use not enough - wants at min transactional immunity)

statutory vs. informal immunity (letter immunity)

· much more rare now

· treated as a K b/w prosecution & defendant

· advantage: speed & ease (only need office supervisor approval)

· disadvantage: looks like a deal; defense can use effectively to make look shady; (court ordered immunity looks like they're forced to testify - had no choice)

· less enforceable than a court ordered immunity; 

· letter immunity doesn't bind other jurisdictions

how to decide whether to give someone immunity?

· first, always get a proffer to see what you'll be getting

· off-the-record meeting to understand what they will testify to at trial (but doesn't provide derivative use protection -- why? - b/c too easy to sabotage govt case)

Privileges

CORPORATIONS HAVE NO 5TH AM PRIVILEGE

· they are creatures of the state, 5th is a human privilege

FISHER V. UNITED STATES [1120]

· What does 5th am protect in terms of documents?

· In Fisher, got tax work papers from accts, then gave to attys, who argued 5th/atty-client mixed privilege.  ct agrees that if you have privileged docs, they don't lose privilege in hands of atty.  (note: in gen'l, can't assert 3rd party's 5th amendment right). exception in atty-client relationship to facilitate communication of legal advice

· But, when client had them, were they privileged from production?  NO, the 5th am protects compulsion of testimony, here, statments were voluntarily made to accountants, just turning over now.  CONTENTS OF DOCS VOLUNTARILY MADE ARE NOT PRIVILEGED
· Sometimes, turning something over is a communicative act - may be privileged under certain circumstances.  Here, "act of production" not privileged -- case-by-case, fact specific

Braswell v. United States (US 1988- Rehnquist)
Facts: D operated his business (buying/selling equipment, land, oil, gas, timber) as a sole propship; from 1965 – 1980; then in 1980 and 1981 he incorporated, and did the same stuff as two corporations along with his wife and mother (Mississippi law requires 3 directors). D retained sole real control over whole corporations. Grand Jury (unclear what it was investigating) subpoenad records of both corporations.

D suggests: 

A. giving custodians immunity for the act of production.  Rejected: granting immunity has serious consequences – e.g. testimony obtained via a grant of immunity cannot be used directly or indirectly (Kastigar)

B. subpoena the corporation, then let the corporation choose a person to respond to the subpoena who can do so w/o incriminating himself.  Rejected: logically, if the custodian is the only person with knowledge of where the docs are located, then another person would not be able to find them on his own search.
· RULE: a corporate custodian cannot resist a subpoeana on the ground that it may require him to incriminate himself. However, there are still some safeguards for the custodian:
· The act of production must be considered an act of the corporation, not an act of the indiv; thus govt cannot make evidentiary use of the “individual act” against the individual.
· BUT the govt may still sometimes use the corporation’s act of production as EV of some wrongdoing by the indiv. E.g. if the jury uses that corporate act of production to find that the records were accurate etc, and that D was one of the relevant people in the corporation who knew about them, they can then hold D liable.
KENNEDY DISSENT: This decision destroys/distorts the line of cases that led to it. In its zeal to de-immunize corporations, the court goes too far in destroying the individual’s 5th Amdt rights. We all know what’s going on here – govt is really pursuing the INDIVIDUAL, not the CORPORATION, regardless of the formalities. Thus the govt cannot realistically say that it is pursuing the CORP, and the court is being way too formalistic with its approach to the “corporate agent” theory. So here the court is making the law “captive to its own fictions.”

United States v. Doe (US 1984 – Powell)
Issue: whether, and to what extent, 5th Amdt applies to the business records of a sole proprietorship.
Facts: GJ investigated corruption in awarding of local govt contracts; served 5 subpoenas on D (guy running his company as a sole proprietorship); 2 of them demanded production of phone records of some of D’s companies. D moved to quash. Dist Ct granted in part. Said the act of producing the docs has communicative aspects that warrant 5th Amdt protection. I.e. it would be incriminating. Third Circuit: affirmed. 
Supreme Court: aff’d in part, rev’d in part, remand for more action.
· Fisher held that only compelled self-incrim is subj to 5th Amdt priv. The preparation of business records is voluntary, so no compulsion is present.
· On question of whether 5th Amdt applies to records of a sole proprietorship:  reasoning of Fisher applies here. Nobody compelled D to keep records. Records of a sole propship are NOT privileged.
· On question of whether the act of producing the document may be privileged: Fisher suggested that this inquiry should be case-by-case and fact-specific. Well, here the Dist Ct and Appls Ct agreed that the act of producing the docs would be incriminatory. Both Cts agreed, so we’ll sustain it. 
· D requests court to adopt a doctrine of “constructive use immunity,” where Cts would require govt not to use the incriminatory aspects of the act of production against the D even though the statutory procedures (by which govt requests immunity) have not been met. Court will not do that – Cong set rules, and we’ll follow them. The decision whether to immunize must be left to the DOJ.
· Therefore the Ct of Appls erred by holding that the contents of the subpoenad docs were privileged under the 5th Amdt.
"ACT OF PRODUCTION" IMMUNITY

UNITED STATES V. HUBBELL [1148]

Won't use act of production at trial for those purposes (could still use contents); 

· even though govt didn't even have to use the documents, still threw out immunity agmt

· govt thought Hubbell didn't honor his plea agmt; they ask for a bunch of docs;

· he asserts act of production privilege -- if i turn over, they exist, responsive, etc. -- might incriminate (or be step in chain that leads to prosecution), prosecutor sent out subpoena w/out knowledge that charges they had; "fishing expedition" 

· But has to throw out b/c they made "extensive use of Hubbell's thought processes"

Turning over by certifying that:

-- i have them

-- these docs respond to subpoena

-- they are authentic

-- they exist

Should you subpoena documents?

· Safe rule of thumb for WCC prosecutor: Don't subpoena them b/c contours of privilege are too unclear

· OK if you know they already exist and can target subpoena narrowly, then not relying on defendant thought processes, etc to turn over

Prosecuting the Immunized Witness
The federal use immunity statute (18 USC 6002)

A prosecutor can force a person to testify (to court, GJ or Cong), despite 5th Amdt, but 

· must immunize him

· It cannot use the info it gets, directly or indirectly, against him. 

· At Kastigar hearing, burden is on the govt to show that its EV is legitimate and from other sources

United States v. North (DC Cir. 1990)

Facts: Cong committees investigating Iran-Contra scandal subpoenad Olly North; he pleaded 5th; Cong compelled his testimony by a grant of use immunity pursuant to 18 USC 6002. North testified. At the same time, the DC Special Division appointed Lawrence Walsh as Independent Counsel to investigate criminal acts by govt officials in connection with it.

North is indicted on 12 counts for his role. Convicted on 3 counts:  Aiding/abetting an endeavor to obstruct Congress

Destroying/altering NSC documents; Accepting illegal gratuity (home security system); North now appeals those convictions.

Held: Dist court erred in failing to hold a full hearing, as required by Kastigar, to ensure that the INdep. Counsel made no use of North’s immunized Cong testimony. Thus all counts vacated and remanded for a Kastigar hearing.

Fourth Amendment Issues

Search Warrant v. GJ Subpoena

	Search Warrant
	GJ Subpoena

	We search
	they search

	Surprise
	not a surprise/ability to shred

	Need for probable cause
	no need

	Need to lay out case
	GJ secrecy

	Free to use docs for other purposes
	not free

	Need to know where docs are
	no need

	Cost and resource considerations
	

	Other potential advantages of search warrant
	


Undercover Operations

· Very important in White Collar Cases – get the defendant on tape.  

· Always look for undercover opportunities

· Greatest concern is entrapment.  

Jacobson v. US (child porn mailings) [SUP 25]:

government agents may not originate a criminal design, implant in an innocent person's mind the disposition to commit a criminal act, and then induce commission of the crime so that the Government may prosecute.  prosecutor must prove beyond reasonable doubt that defendant was disposed to commit the criminal act prior to first being approached by government agents.  Evidence that merely indicates a generic inclination to act within broad range of conduct, not all of which is criminal, is of little probative value in establishing predisposition, and evidence of predisposition to do what once was lawful is not, by itself, sufficient to show predisposition to do what is now illegal.
In re Sealed Case No. 99-3091: During President Clinton's impeachment trial, the New York Times published an article captioned "Starr is Weighing Whether to Indict Sitting President." The White House sought a show cause order why the Office of Independent Counsel (OIC) should not be held in contempt for disclosing grand jury material in violation of Fed. R. Crim. P. 6(e), pointing to several excerpts from the article as evidence of OIC's violations of the secrecy rule. OIC noted the article contained confidential internal OIC information, but maintained the information was not protected by Rule 6(e). The district court disagreed, concluding the article revealed grand jury material and constituted a prima facie violation of Rule 6(e). The appellate court reversed and remanded for dismissal, holding the public disclosures of internal deliberations of OIC prosecutors that did not directly reveal grand jury proceedings did not violate Rule 6(e) as they did not "occur before the grand jury."

UNITED STATES v. R. ENTERPRISES, INC.:   Federal grand jury issued subpoenas to respondents in its investigations of alleged interstate transportation of obscene materials seeking corporate books and records, and videotapes. Respondents, three sellers or distributors of adult materials with the same owner, moved to quash. The district court denied the motions to quash, found the subpoenas standard business subpoenas, and held respondents in contempt fining them on a per diem basis which was stayed pending appeal. The appeals court affirmed the business records subpoena as to one respondent, quashed the subpoenas as to two respondents, and remanded the motion to quash for videotapes. The appeals court concluded petitioner had not demonstrated relevancy, admissibility, and specificity as required to enforce a grand jury subpoena. Petitioner was granted certiorari to determine whether the appeals court applied the proper standard in evaluating the grand jury subpoenas issued to respondents. The Court reversed the appeals court quashing the two respondents' subpoenas finding that Fed. R. Crim. P. 17(c) imposed reasonableness limitations on grand jury subpoenas not argued by respondents. The case was remanded.

Environmental Crimes

· 20-30 yrs ago, these were regulatory offenses or civil offenses; now they’re crimes.
· 4 big statutes:
· RCRA – Resource Conservation and Recovery Act
· CERCLA – Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act.
· CAA – Clean Air Act
· CWA – Clean Water Act.
· Standards of liability: All 4 stats contain crim provisions providing that “knowing” violations of the respective provisions of each act render the violator criminally liable. CAA, CWA, and RCRA provide enhanced crim penalties for knowingly endangering another person. Furthermore, CAA and CWA also provide criminal liability for Negt violations of their provisions.
Mental state: mental illness or sometimes substance/drug impairment can be defenses, b/c you don’t “know.”
US v. Weitzenhoff (9th Cir. 1993)
Facts: D discharged sludge into water in violation of the terms of its permit; washed up on shore.
US v. Ahmad (5th Cir. 1996)
Facts: D owned gas station where water leaked into his underground tank; rather than pay to have it pumped out and fixed (a few thousand bucks), he pumped it out himself late at night onto the street; leaked into manhole and local water was polluted; serious danger of explosion; 
Clean Water Act: 33 U.S.C. 1251-1376

· “point source” something like a pipe

Level of intent:

· Negligence

· Knowing violation

United States v. Plaza Health Lab

Defendant was convicted of knowingly discharging pollutants into the Hudson River in violation of the Clean Water Act (CWA), 33 U.S.C.S. § 1251 et seq. The district court granted a judgment of acquittal on two counts of violating the knowing-endangerment provisions of the CWA. Defendant and the government both sought review. On appeal, the court reversed the conviction and affirmed the judgment of acquittal. The court held that the criminal provisions of the CWA had not clearly proscribed defendant's conduct because as a human being he was not considered a "point source" for the discharge of pollutants and had not accorded him fair warning of the sanctions the law placed on that conduct. The court further held that under the rule of lenity, which stated that ambiguities in the statute were resolved in defendant's favor, mandated the reversal of the convictions.

· Different theory might have produced a different result:  Bulkhead or container could be described as a point source

Weitzenhoff case

Defendant managers of a sewage treatment plant instructed employees to dispose of waste activated sludge directly into the ocean at night. Defendants were convicted of violating the Clean Water Act (CWA), 33 U.S.C.S. § 1251 et seq., and the court affirmed their convictions. The government did not need to prove that defendants knew that their acts violated either the National Pollution Discharge Elimination System permit or the CWA. Criminal sanctions were appropriate if defendants knowingly engaged in conduct that resulted in permit violations. The district court's admission of expert testimony on contested issues of law in lieu of instructing the jury was harmless error. The permits were not unconstitutionally vague. The district court did not abuse its discretion in excluding evidence, and a jury instruction on entrapment was not warranted. Although certain testimony and prosecutorial remarks were of questionable relevance, they did not materially affect the verdict or rendered the trial unfair considered in the context of the entire proceeding. Finally, the district court's upward adjustment in one defendant's sentence due to his perjurious testimony was not clearly erroneous.

Don’t have to prove that they were violating the permit only that they were dumping.

Clean Air Act: 42 U.S.C. 7413

· Knowing endangerment

· Knowing applies to the emissions

· Dipentino – what is an owner or operator

RCRA: 42 U.S.C. 6901-6987

· Hazardous waste – cradle to grave

· Manifest system

· Tracking of waste

CERCLA: 42 U.S.C. 9601-9675

· Hazardous waste – cleanup

· Failing to report cleanup of hazardous waste

· What does it mean to be in charge

· Carr case

Fraud on Financial Institutions

3 major kinds of fin insts:

· banks

· thrifts (S&Ls, mutual savings banks)

· credit unions

Big crisis in 1982-92 cost $500 billion to taxpayers from bailout.

Major Fed statutes that criminalize fraud re: fin insts (all Title 18):

· § 215  prohibits bribery of public officials. Active and passive bribery.Cannot give anything of value to an officer/agent of a FI w/intent to influence any transaction of that FI; also they cannot receive anything of value.
· § 225  CFCE – continuing Fed crimes enterprise.Cannot organize, manage or supervise a CFCE where D receives $5 million or more in a 2-year period. Must show at least 4 persons “working in concert” to violate at least one of 11 specified Fed crimes. not very hard to do if you’re running an S&L.
· §§ 656, 657 makes crime for insiders to embezzle, purloin, etc. funds of the FI general embezzlement statute. it’s very hard to do embez w/o also making a false statement, so 1005-06 are often implicated too.
· §§ 1005, 1006 certain insiders of FIs cannot make or cause to be made, false statements in books or records of the FI. 1005 applies to bank insiders 1006 applies to insiders at Fed credit institutions.
· § 1007 cannot make false statements to FDIC.
· § 1014 crime to make false statement to a FI, for purpose of influencing the conduct of a FI upon any application submitted to it.:  elements:
· false statement as to material fact,
· or willfully overvalues any land, property or security.
· Also includes omissions – e.g. a form says “list all assets” and you don’t list them all.
· D made it knowingly
· The statement was for purpose of influencing in any way the action of any institution insured by FDIC
· Does not have to succeed.

Harder than it looks for govt to prove elements.
US v. Jobe (5th Cir. 1996)
Facts: D operated ambitious check-kiting operation. D prosecuted under § 1014, for making a false statement to a FI.
Held:

· § 1032 punished not as severely as some others. receiving assets from a conservator or other agent of a FI.  hiding assets can suffice.
· § 1344 new, fairly flexible; akin to mail fraud, but w/o mailing requirement, must have a Fed insured FI, also a predicate act under RICO. any kind of fraud involving a FI would qualify.
Health Care Fraud

· Health care fraud accounts for over a trillion dollars of costs to taxpayers every year. Govt is putting massive resources into fighting it.
· Major statutes used include mail/wire fraud, RICO, money laundering, kickback statute (42 USC § 1320 and subsections), food drug and cosmetic act, laws re theft and embezzlement in connection w/health care program, 18 USC § 1035 (false steaements re: helth acare), 18 § 1315??? (obstruction of justice WRT health care fraud investigations).
· Kickback fraud statute: makes it a crime to receive, solicit, pay, etc, and bribe etc, directly or indirectly, in return for referral of a patient who’s covered by Medicare. This bars any sort of thing of value in exchange for a referral – incl referrals back and forth.
· If two doctors refer cases to each other – even where they might have more benignmotives – they can still be prosecuted.
Some safe harbors: 
· discounts are permitted if disclosed
· any amount paid b y an empoloyer to an employee is allowed
· if space and equip are at market value, that’s okay
· various investment interests
· sometimes a doc owns an interest in a lab, and refers some work to that lab – that can be a problem.
False Statements

Elements:

1)  A false/fraudulent statement, writing, or concealment of fact by trick/scheme/device;

2)  False statement or information concealed was material;

3)  In a matter within the jurisdiction of the federal executive, legislative, or judicial branches;

4)  Defendant acted knowingly and willfully


Note what is NOT required:

· No requirement that the statement be under oath

· No requirement that the government relied upon the statement in any way

· No requirement that the government suffered damage, financial or otherwise

Three forms of liability under §1001

· D made a statement
· It was false, factitious or fraudulent as D knew
· Was made knowingly AND willfully
· Made within the JD of the Fed agency
· Statement was material.
· Test for materiality: whether the falsification “has a natural tendency to influence, or was capable of influencing, the decision of the tribunal in making a determination required to be made.” (US v. Irwin, 10th Cir. 1981, P 689)
Concealing material facts by “trick, scheme or device”

· Only applies if there was a DUTY TO DISCLOSE the concealed information

· Must commit some affirmative act of concealment

False Statements or Writings (prongs 2 & 3):

· Must prove actual falsity – no room for ambiguity, misinterpretation, or literal truth

Covered Writings/Statements:

· Written/oral

· Sworn/unsworn

· Volunteered/required – no “duty to disclose”

· Silence if duty to speak or silence would be misleading

Materiality

· Statement is material if it has “a natural tendency to influence, or is capable of influencing, the decision of the decision-making body to which it was addressed” (US v. Gaudin – [320])

· No requirement of:

· Credibility or that anyone believed

· Reliance by agency

· Intended/actual financial/property loss to govt

· Voluntary/required stmt

· Stmt being read or even received by the agency

· Influence on agency

· Only need to show that the “statement is capable of influencing or affecting a federal agency”

“Within the jurisdiction”

· Phrase is construed very broadly (U.S. v. Rodgers)

· Covers “all matters confided to the authority of an agency or department”

· Statement need not be made directly to the federal agency, so long as it concerns matters within the federal agency’s jurisdiction (U.S. v. Herring – [334])

· Also applies to state/local/private agencies that have funding/other connection to Federal Govt (Herring – [334])

“Executive, legislative, or judicial branch”

· Before 1996, statute referred only to a “department or agency of the United States” 

· Amended in 1996 following Supreme Court decision in Hubbard v. U.S. (the “Hubbard fix”) 

· Note exceptions in the statute for certain statements made to legislative and judicial branches

· Judicial function exception – parties/counsel are not covered under the statute

· Constituent submissions to legislators are not covered

“Knowing and willful”

· Government must prove that the defendant knew the statement was false; may also have to prove that defendant acted with intent to deceive. (but knowledge of falsity is pretty strong circumstantial evidence of intent)

· Show by either evidence of actual knowledge OR evidence that defendant intentionally/recklessly avoided learning truth/falsity of stmt

· If concealment of mat’l fact, govt may have to show defendant knew of duty to disclose and intentionally failed to do so

· Do NOT need to prove that the defendant knew the statement was “within the jurisdiction” of the federal government (US v. Yermian – [333])

Defenses

· “exculpatory no” defense is not available – see Brogan v. US [338]

· falls w/in literal language of §1001, but many think that this allows prosecutors to manufacture crimes by forcing a confession or charging false stmt

· discouraged in USAM

False Claims

Differences between 1001 and 287

1) 287 applies only to “claims,” 1001 applies to any false statement or document or concealment.

2) 287 has pre-Hubbard language, probably applies only to Executive branch.

3) Materiality may not have to be shown for 287.

When to charge 287/1001

· if 287 applies (and 1001 inevitably will too), there is a civil claims action (31 USC 3729) ( substantial damages

· could file both simultaneously, put pressure on defendant; negotiate global settlement

· Civil false claims – qui tam suits – private individual brings suit on behalf of the govt

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

· Added new 18 U.S.C. 1350, providing criminal penalties for corporate officers who make false statements when complying with the new requirement that they certify their company’s financial reports

CRIMINAL Causes of Action

Statutes:

18 USC § 287 – felony to submit any claim to the US, “knowing such claim to be false, fictitious, or fraudulent.”
1) Defendant presented a claim against the United States or a department or agency of the United States;

2) The claim was false, fictitious, or fraudulent;

3) The defendant knew the claim was false, fictitious, or fraudulent.Mostly applies to government contracts

· 287 likely only applies to the Executive Branch

· There is a civil false claims act (contract suit) – civil case often is determined by the criminal case

· Qui tam suits (citizen brings suit on behalf of the government)

· Mens Rea can include reckless disregard for the truth or willful blindness

§ 286 – felony to conspire to present false claims
§ 288 – false claims for postal losses
§ 289 – false claims for pension payments
§ 1001 – felony to submit a false statement or conceal a material fact regarding any matter “within the JD of the exec, leg or judicial branch of the govt of the US.”
§ 1001 is broader than § 287 b/c it applies to ANY false statement, not just false claims.
US v. Irwin (10th Cir. 1981)
· D convicted on 8 counts of conspiracy, making a false statement to a US agency (§ 1002 and § 1002), concealing material facts (§ 1001 and § 1002, and filing false claims to US agency (§ 287).
· D appeals – says that govt failed to prove “materiality” (how his acts might have affected the govt agency’s decisions in any significant way.
Qui Tam Suits

Statutes:

· 31 USC §§ 3729-31: Qui tam lawsuits  Creates private attorneys general – private party believes he can prove fraud against Fed govt, files civil lawsuit; govt decided whether it wants to intervene (usually does not); and then the qui tam “relator” (plaintiff) may continue to pursue the lawsuit if he wants.  1986 Amdts to the False Claims Act: enhanced the influence of the qui tam relator in 2 ways:
· lets relator remain actively involved in the case – this encouraged qui tam lawsuits b/c it let the Ps demand a high settlement instead of letting govt agree to settle for lower amounts than private Ps would settle for.
· Increased the amount that relators could get of the settlement – before, under orig 1863 Act, they could get max 10% - now they get minimum 15%, and Ct can award them up to 25%.
CLASS NOTES – 
if govt decides NOT to take the case, 2 things happen – chances of success go down, and the amount the relator recovers go up.  qui tam suits are v imp part of white collar practice today. recent cases – SCOTUS said recently (Cook co v. Chandler) – that you can subject municipalities to the False Claims Act – they’re not immune. 

Stevens (SCOTUS) – decided one of the issues – the art III issue – said there is no art III limitation on bringing False Claims Act cases. the other main statute used to prosecute false claims against govt – for general govt contracts – is § 1001 – bars “material” false statements to gov agency.
Money Laundering

Money Laundering Defined

· The concealment of the existence, nature, or illegal source of illicit funds in such a manner that the funds will appear legitimate if discovered.

· Attacking the “fruits” of the criminal enterprise (taking the fun out of it)

· Has a hefty penalty – makes WCC less attractive (but now less additive to sentence)

· 20 yrs/500k or 2x laundered funds

Money Laundering Statutes

· 18 U.S.C. 1956:  the true “laundering” statute, requires one of four specific intents or types of knowledge in connection with a financial transaction involving illicit funds

· 18 U.S.C. 1957: the “transaction” statute, requires only a knowing monetary transaction with illicit funds, but no further specific intent or knowledge

18 U.S.C. 1956(a)(1) – Elements

1.    Defendant conducts or attempts to conduct a “financial transaction;”

2.    Knowing that the property involved represents the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity; (Dirty money)

3.    The financial transaction does in fact involve the proceeds of a “specified unlawful activity” (SUA); and

4.    Defendant acts with one of four specific intents or types of knowledge.

“Financial Transaction”

· Defined in the statute: 1956(c)(4): (4) the term "financial transaction" means (A) a transaction which in any way or degree affects interstate or foreign commerce (i) involving the movement of funds by wire or other means or (ii) involving one or more monetary instruments, or (iii) involving the transfer of title to any real property, vehicle, vessel, or aircraft, or (B) a transaction involving the use of a financial institution which is engaged in, or the activities of which affect, interstate or foreign commerce in any way or degree;  or foreign commerce in any way or degree;

· Very broad definition, includes virtually any kind of transaction or transfer involving money, financial instruments, or certain types of property

· Financial transaction is the unit of prosecution – each transaction may be a separate money laundering count

Knowledge Requirement

· Must show that at the time of the transaction, the defendant knew the property was proceeds of “some form of unlawful activity”

· Defined in the statute at 1956(c)(1): the term "knowing that the property involved in a financial transaction represents the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity" means that the person knew the property involved in the transaction represented proceeds from some form, though not necessarily which form, of activity that constitutes a felony under State, Federal, or foreign law, regardless of whether or not such activity is specified in paragraph (7);

· Note that, unlike “specified unlawful activity,” there is not a specific list of offenses that will qualify

“Proceeds”

Property involved must be “proceeds” of unlawful activity; “proceeds” is not defined in the statute

Generally, “proceeds” are funds that have been generated by an already completed unlawful activity

The laundering must be a “downstream” transaction

The defendant must know, at the time of the transaction, that the property involved is “proceeds” of “some form of unlawful activity”

The property must, in fact, be “proceeds” of a “specified unlawful activity” (SUA)

Specified Unlawful Activity (SUA)

Defined in the statute at 1956(c)(7)

SUAs include many common white collar offenses, including bribery, mail and wire fraud, obstruction of justice, and the Hobbs act

Specific Intent/Knowledge for 1956(a)(1)

1.
Intent to promote an SUA – (a)(1)(A)(i)

2.     Intent to evade income taxes – (a)(1)(A)(ii)

3.
Knowing that transaction is designed to conceal or disguise the nature, location, source, ownership, or control of the proceeds of the SUA – (a)(1)(B)(i)

4.
Knowing that transaction is designed to avoid a CTR filing requirement – (a)(1)(B)(ii)

United States v. Campbell: Defendant, a realtor, arranged for the sellers to accept a third of the price of their house under the table in cash. The district court granted her motion for judgment of acquittal. The court reversed, holding that there was sufficient evidence for the jury to have found that defendant knew that the funds were the proceeds of illegal activity, and that the transaction was designed to disguise the nature of those proceeds. The district court erred as to the elements of the offense. The government only had to show that defendant knew that the transaction was designed to conceal illegal proceeds, not that her purpose was to conceal, and that the funds were proceeds of unlawful activity, not that she knew of the drug dealer's activities. The trial court made an impermissible judgment on witness credibility; in ruling on the motion for judgment of acquittal, it should have weighed defendant's statement that the funds "might have been drug money" most favorably to the government. The court held that the evidence of her lifestyle, the "might have been drug money" statement, and the fraudulent nature of the transaction were sufficient to create a question for the jury.

Willful blindness standard

18 U.S.C. 1956(a)(2)

· Applies to international money laundering
· Applies only to "monetary instruments or funds"

· For international transactions with intent to promote an SUA, the funds need not be proceeds of unlawful activity (1956(a)(2)(A))

· For transactions to conceal the source of funds or avoid a CTR, funds must be unlawful proceeds  (1956(a)(2)(B))

18 U.S.C. 1956(a)(3)

Applies to laundering funds from undercover operations

Other 1956 Provisions

1956(b) – civil penalty

1956(h) – conspiracy provision

1956 vs. 1957

1957 applies only to “monetary transactions,” narrower than “financial transactions” for 1956(a)(1)

1957 has $10,000 minimum requirement

No specific intent or additional knowledge required for 1957

Commingling rules not as favorable for 1957 

Penalties:

1956 max. 20 yrs

1957 max. 10 yrs.

United States v. Piervinanzi: Defendants entered into a scheme to fraudulently transfer funds overseas from an account at a trust company. Defendants were convicted of conspiracy, attempted bank fraud, and attempted money laundering. One defendant was also convicted of wire fraud, attempted bank fraud, attempted money laundering, and money laundering stemming from a separate but related scheme targeting another trust company. On appeal, the court vacated defendants' sentences for the offenses under 18 U.S.C.S. §§ 371, 1343, 1344 because they exceeded the maximum allowable sentences for the convictions. The court reversed the conviction of one defendant for money laundering in violation of 18 U.S.C.S. § 1957 because the funds never came into the possession or under the control of the conspirators. The court held that the act of attempting to fraudulently transfer funds out of the trust companies was analytically distinct from the attempted transmission of those funds overseas and was itself independently illegal under 18 U.S.C.S. § 1344. The court further held that United States Attorney Manuel Guidelines and United State Sentencing Guidelines Commentary do not confer substantive rights on defendants.

United States v. Jackson, 935 F.2d 832: Appellant preacher and assistants were convicted of conspiring to distribute over 50 grams of cocaine base. Additionally, the preacher was convicted of engaging in a continuing criminal enterprise and money laundering. Both assistants were sentenced to 210 months' and the preacher was sentenced to 30 years' imprisonment. On review, the preacher challenged the sufficiency of the evidence that convicted him of the crimes charged. The court affirmed, finding the evidence was sufficient to show that the preacher had derived money from drug activities and deposited them in church accounts. Further, the conviction for conspiracy was supported by witness testimony that linked the assistants to the drug distribution network masterminded by the preacher. Next, the court disposed of the preacher's ineffective assistance claim, holding that trial counsel's performance did not drop below the constitutional minimum. Finally, the court remanded the cause to the district court to resentence one assistant because his failure to cooperate with the government did not rise to the level of obstructing justice so as to warrant a sentence enhancement.

United States v. Johnson: Defendant was convicted of 63 counts of violating the money laundering statutes, 18 U.S.C.S. §§ 1956 & 1957, including over 30 counts in which he was charged with a violation by the act of having funds wired to him, prior to their receipt. The court affirmed his convictions on the counts relating to the funds after they were received by him and transferred from his account, but reversed the convictions based on the wiring of funds to him, as the funds were not transfers in criminally deprived property. A violation of § 1957 occurred only after the individual involved gained possession of the proceeds generated by the criminal activity. It was improper for the court to determine defendant's offense level by adding funds obtained from wire fraud to those used in money laundering offenses, so his sentence was vacated and the case was remanded for resentencing. Further, his offense level could not be increased pursuant to an amendment to the U.S. Sentencing Guidelines Manual § 3B1.1 which was enacted after his crimes, since considering other relevant conduct was a substantive change.  Wire transfers to him can’t be money laundering Not a downstream transaction But transfers from him to customers is a downstream transaction

Currency Transaction Reports (CTRs)

· Must be filed for all cash transactions in excess of $10,000 
· Form 4789: for financial institutions 
· Form 8300:  for any “trade or business” 
· Willful failure to file the reports is a felony.
· 31 U.S.C. 5324:  makes it a crime to structure transactions so as to avoid CTRs being filed – “structuring” or “smurfing.”   5 year felony.
Tax Fraud

Tax Evasion:  26 USC 7201

· Tax is owed

· act of (attempted) evasion

· willfulness (mens rea)

False Return or Related Statement:  26 USC 7206

· prepare a filed document verified as true

· return is materially false

· willfulness

Failure to File:  26 USC 7203

· failure to provide info, file return, or pay a tax

Corollary Charges 

· Conspiracy

· perjury

· false claims/statements

· --nb.  generally don’t use mail/wire fraud in addition to tax fraud

Markers for Tax Fraud

· Double books

· false entries
· false records
· document destruction

· asset concealment

· nb IRS prosecutes selectively, likes tax time.

Cheek v. US

· Admitted filing false returns, claimed income tax was unconst’l.

· Honest misunderstanding of law removes mens rea; here Cheek had several times failed to win suits on unconstl’y of tax, had knowledge of duty and violated flagrantly.

· Scalia--Dissent: Good faith, though wrong belief in unconstitutionality of a law absolves punishment

US v. Lawhon

Direct proof of specific items needed.  State used direct method of income assessment, thus no burden to seek exculpatory info.  With indirect method, govt must follow up exculpatory leads.

US v. Lacob

Personal injury lawyer improperly co-mingled self and client $$, search of bank deposits for proof of taxable income is allowed despite arg that it switches burden of proof to def.  

Computer Crime

· Often prosecuted under wire fraud statutes

· difficulties deciding proper jurisdictions as servers, sending v receiving computers, etc vary in location

· 18 USC 1030(a)(5)(A):  knowingly causing the transmission of a program . . . and as a result . . . intentionally causing unauthorized damage to a protected computer. 

· 18 USC 1030(a)(5)(B):  criminalizes intentionally accessing protected computer without authority and as a result, recklessly causing damage. 

US v Morris

· Prosecuted for violating 18 USC 1030(a)(5)(A) for releasing a worm that disabled ++computers.

· Does Mens Rea apply to release and damage?  (Def didn’t expect work to replicate so fast, even tried to stem damage later.

· Inadvertent access not covered in original statutes, so mens rea only for unathorized access.  Statute amended to above.

Sentencing

Goals-

· Punishment

· Debarment

· Probation

· Fines and restitution

· Incarceration 

· guidelines (www.ussc.gov)

· Deterrence

· Restitution

· Rehabilitation

· Guidelines were aimed at sentencing disparity

· Parole is abolished

Koon v. United States: The court affirmed in part and reversed in part the finding that petitioner's sentence should be reduced for the victim's provocation and several other factors. The appellate court, upon a de novo review, reversed the reduction and petitioner sought review. The court held that the appellate court should have used the abuse of discretion review since sentencing was a matter of discretion and the Sentencing Guidelines permitted the district court judge to enhance or reduce the sentences according to certain standards. The court further found that the factors the district court judges used to enhance or reduce sentences stated in the Sentencing Reform Act, 18 U.S.C.S. § 3551 et seq., were not exhaustive and the district court judge was permitted to use factors not specifically stated. Therefore, the court held that the district court had the discretion to reduce petitioner's sentence and that the judge did not abuse discretion in reducing petitioner's sentence except when the sentence was reduced for petitioner's career and low likelihood of recidivism. Therefore, the court affirmed in part and reversed in part the decision to reverse the reduction of petitioner's sentence.

Asset Forfeiture

Major statutes involved with criminal asset forfeiture:

· 21 USC § 853 – involves drug offenses; requires forfeiture of property constituting or derived from drug offenses or used to commit/facilitate drug offenses.

· RICO – requires forfeiture for conviction of property acquired or maintained in violation of RICO.

· 18 USC § 982 – requires forfeiture of prop involved in, or traceable to, a specific offense.

· 18 USC § 981 – CIVIL counterpart to § 981 – same stuff as above.

Criminal asset forfeiture – see other sections of book – e.g. money laundering

CIVIL forfeiture 

· Has been available to prosecutors for long time

· Usually done as “in rem” proceedings – where govt must show that the prop was used during the commission of a crime or that the prop constitutes proceeds from a crime.

Procedure/Standard of proof:

· Govt must only show that prob cause exists to believe that prop is subject to forfeiture in order to get forf under civil statutes. Hearsay EV may be used to meet this burden. Once govt shows prob cause, burden shifts back to party seeking to keep the prop (and now party may NOT use hearsay EV, and must prove by preponderance of EV); if they succeed, burden goes back to govt, which must then prove WITHOUT hearsay EV.

· Relation back – govt has right of forf at time of the illegal act, rather than at the time the govt initiates or wins the action. Self-incrimination: some critics say this infringes 5th Amdt: b/c it’s a civil action, an adverse inference may be drawn from the decision not to testify, and many Ds in these CIVIL actions would probably want to remain silent normally b/c they are also potential CRIM defendants.

Securities Fraud

Statutes

· 17 CFR §240.10b-5

· § 240.10b-5 Employment of manipulative and deceptive devices.

· directly or indirectly, by use of interstate commerce, or of the mails or of any national securities exchange,

(a) To employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud,

(b) make untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances, not misleading, or

(c) To engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person, in connection with the purchase or sale of any security.

15 USC § 78j(b)

§ 78j. Manipulative and deceptive devices directly or indirectly, by use of interstate commerce or of the mails, or of any national securities exchange--

 (b) To use or employ, in connection with the purchase or sale of any security, any manipulative or deceptive device or contrivance in contravention of such rules and regulations as the Commission may prescribe as necessary or appropriate in the public interest or for the protection of investors.

15 USC § 78ff(a)

§ 78ff. Penalties

(a) Willful violations; false and misleading statements

Any person who willfully violates any provision of this chapter or any rule or regulation, or any person who willfully and knowingly makes, or causes to be made, any statement in any application, report, or document required to be filed under this chapter or any rule or regulation or any in a registration statement, or by any self-regulatory organization in connection with an application for membership or participation therein or to become a member thereof, which statement was false or misleading with respect to any material fact, shall upon conviction be fined not more than $5,000,000, or imprisoned not more than 20 years, or both, except that when such person is a person other than a natural person, a fine not exceeding $25,000,000 may be imposed; but no person shall be subject to imprisonment under this section for the violation of any rule or regulation if he proves that he had no knowledge of such rule or regulation.

18 USC § 1348

§ 1348. Securities fraud

Whoever knowingly executes, or attempts to execute, a scheme or artifice--

(1) to defraud any person in connection with any security, or

(2) to obtain, by means of false or fraudulent pretenses, representations, or promises, any money or property in connection with the purchase or sale of any security shall be fined under this title, or imprisoned not more than 25 years, or both.

Insider Trading

· An individual’s purchase or sale of securities on the basis of material, nonpublic information, in breach of the individual’s fiduciary duty or a similar duty of trust and confidence.

· Key requirement is the violation of a duty of some kind -- liability does not arise merely from the possession of material, non-public information

Two Kinds of Information

1) True “inside” information: information about the company’s business or internal operations (upcoming new product, earnings, dividends, financial information, etc.)  Dirks
2) “Market” information:  information that will affect the market for the securities (company will be the subject of a tender offer or a favorable review in financial press, etc.)  Chiarella, Carpenter, O’Hagan
Chiarella v. U.S. [757]

(The guy learning about mergers at the printer).  ISSUE: whether a person who learns inside information from the confidential docs of one organization about a merger w/ another corporation violates §10b if he doesn’t disclose the info b/f trading in the corp’s stocks. Court reverses convictions from the app ct, which upheld the convictions on two grounds: (1) as a “market insider”, anyone who possesses insider information must either disclose it or refrain from trading; (2) defendant was liable for “misappropriating” the info he learned at the printer in breach of his fiduciary duty to his employer

· Supreme Court rejected the “market insider” theory of liability.  stock purchaser w/ no duty to a prospective seller b/c he isn’t an insider or a fiduciary doesn’t have an obligation to reveal mat’l facts based decision on common law fraud principles: need duty in order to be liable 

· reasoning of App Ct suffered from two defects:

(1) not every instance of financial unfairness constitutes fraudulent activity under §10b

(2) the duty to disclose that would prohibit silence was not present here

· Formulation of such a broad duty to disclose is up to Congress, court will not require one w/out clear intent from Congr.  No duty to disclose under §10b for merely possessing material, non-public information.  Alternative (misappropriation) theory: breached duty to acquiring corporation when he acted upon info obtained by virtue of position at printer ( won’t act on that here b/c it wasn’t instructed to the jury

DISSENT (Burger):  Would apply the “misappropriation theory” of liability.  Duty to disclose should apply when info advantage obtained by “unlawful means”, not by skill/intelligence/analysis/etc. A person who has misappropriated nonpublic information has an absolute duty to disclose that information or to refrain from trading. Language of §10b and R.10b-5 supports this: “any person engaged in any fraudulent scheme”. Under misappropriation theory, defendant liable b/c breached duty to employer by taking inside info from mergers in violation of internal corp policy

Cady Roberts Rule

Insiders must disclose material facts which are known to them b/c of their position but aren’t known to others and which, if known, would affect their investment judgment.  

Duty to disclose arises from:

(1) Existence of relationship allowing access to inside info intended for corp purposes only, AND

(2) Unfairness of allowing a corp insider to take advantage of that information

Classical or Traditional Theory

A corporate “insider” (officer, director, controlling shareholder) uses material, nonpublic information to trade in the corporation’s stock, in violation of fiduciary duty to the shareholders with whom the insider transacts.

Note that some individuals who are normally "outsiders" (attorneys, auditors, etc.) may become "insiders" (quasi-insiders) with respect to a particular transaction or item of information, if they are expected to keep the information confidential (Dirks fn. 14)

Dirks v. SEC [765]

(Stock broker that investigated, found fraud, told his clients (tried to tell WSJ), but didn’t reveal to public)

ISSUE: Whether Dirks violated antifraud provisions of federal securities laws by disclosing info to his investor clients that he obtained from “insiders” of a corp w/ which he had no connection

Tippee can be liable on a theory of a “derivative” breach of duty – a breach that derives from the tipper’s breach

Court reaffirms Chiarella principle that equal information is not required among all investors

Whether a breach of a duty has occurred depends on the purpose of the disclosure – the standard (from Cady Roberts) is whether the insider will personally benefit (directly/indirectly) from the disclosure

· absent some personal gain, no breach of duty to the shareholders

· absent a breach by the insider, no derivative breach

Here, facts don’t show violation of duty

· Dirks stranger to Corp

· Took no action that would lead shareholders/officers to repose trust in him

· No expectation by insiders that Dirks would keep info secret

· Dirks didn’t misappropriate/illegally obtain the inside information

Since tippers were motivated to expose the fraud, not gain personally or for Dirks, no breach of duty

Quasi-insider: lawyer/accountant/banker that has a temporary relationship w/ the company

ELEMENTS OF TIPPEE LIABILITY

(1) tipper must have been an insider/quasi-insider/misappropriator

(2) tipper must have been acting for personal gain (see Dirks)

(3) tippee must have obtained mat’l, non-public info from tipper

(4) tippee must have bought/sold securities

(5) tippee must have knowingly possessed the information when making the purchase/sale

(6) tippee must have acted willfully

“Tipper/Tippee” Liability

· One who receives a “tip” concerning inside information is liable for insider trading if the tipper was in violation of a fiduciary duty when disclosing the information, and the tippee knew or had reason to know of that violation.

· Insider violates fiduciary duties by “tipping” if the insider will benefit personally, either directly or indirectly, from the disclosure  (Dirks)

United States v. O’Hagan [773]

(law firm partner buys stock in corp that his firm is rep’g in a merger; lawyer not working on merger, just knows about it)

Supreme Court finally adopts “misappropriation” theory.  The “deception” here was the theft of info and the fraud upon the law firm. Misappropriation Theory: a fiduciary’s undisclosed, self-serving use of a principal’s information to purchase or sell securities, in breach of a duty of loyalty and confidentiality, defrauds the principal of the exclusive use of that information

Ct states that classical and misappropriation theories are complementary:

Classical: targets corp insider’s breach of duty to shareholders w/ whom the insider transacts

Misappropriation: outlaws trading on the basis of non-public info by a corp outsider in breach of a duty owed to the source of the information

No FED breach of duty if fiduciary discloses to source that he intends to trade on the non-public information

“in connection w/ purchase/sale of securities” – satisfied upon purchase or sale, not upon obtaining the information

Court did not delineate the boundaries of the fiduciary duty ( t/f misappropriation theory remains a vague/controversial basis of insider trading liability

Disagreement w/ dissent ( issue of whether use of funds (i.e. fraudulently obtained from a bank) would give rise to same liability as using information in a securities transaction

Majority brushes aside b/c of assertion that rules were intended to insure fair/honest markets

Switch wording from “ordinarily” to “only” ( how can it do this?

Misappropriation Theory

An individual misappropriates confidential information for securities trading purposes, in breach of a duty owed to the source of the information (not to the stockholders with whom he/she is transacting).

New Statute:  18 U.S.C. 1348: Securities Fraud

· Prohibits knowingly executing, or attempting to execute, a scheme or artifice 

· To defraud any person in connection with any security regulated by the SEC;   OR

· To obtain, by means of false or fraudulent pretenses, representations, or promises, any money or property in connection with the purchase or sale of any security

· Penalty:  up to 25 years in prison

What is added by new Section 1348?

· No need to use mail or wire fraud for securities fraud schemes

· Fraud scheme need not be in connection with the “purchase and sale” of securities
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